
    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA

                Meeting Date & Time
Wednesday, November 12, 2025

6:00 p.m.

Meeting Location
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
2651 N. Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104

Henderson, NV 89014

Video Conferencing/ Teleconferencing Available
To access by phone, +1(646) 568-7788

To access by video webinar, 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85886226810
Webinar/Meeting ID#: 858 8622 6810

Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 571807

PUBLIC NOTICE:
Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available 
after roll call (beginning of meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3)
minutes for each individual.

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 
N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address
nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Monday, November 10, 2025, by 12:00 
p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the 
adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing
before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 
3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, 
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the
commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an 
individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126.

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State 
Board of Dental Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone 
conference, it is possible that an amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended
Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

JOE LOMBARDO
Governor

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ
Director

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAG

MARCEL F. SCHAERER
Deputy Directors

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAM
Executive Director



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the 
meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48 
hours prior to the meeting. Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you 
may download the supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the 
supporting materials for the public body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, 
Henderson, NV 89014. 

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action.  
 Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table it.  

 

1. Call to Order 

 

a. Roll Call/Quorum 

 

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted 
email/written form): The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on 
the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during the public comment unless the 
matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public 
may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not 
be limited to based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion.  

 
Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Monday, November 10, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record. 

 
In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that 
is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the 
content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other 
speakers.  

 

3. President’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Request to Remove Agenda Item(s) (For Possible Action) 

 

b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action) 

 

4. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Approval/Rejection of Minutes – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. October 15, 2025 – Board Meeting  

ii. October 29, 2025 – CE Committee Meeting  

iii. October 29, 2025 – Infection Control Committee Meeting  

 



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

b. Review and Discussion of the Initial Licensing and Permitting Report– NRS 631. 190 

(For Informational Purposes Only) 

 

i. Dentists, Dental Hygienists, and Dental Therapists 

ii. Public Health Programs 

 

5. Executive Team Report: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Legal Actions/Litigation Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

 

b. Regulatory Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

 
i. Emailed Business Impact Statement to All Licensees 

 

c. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Revised Proposed 

Regulations for RO56-24 Teledentistry – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

d. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Remand(s) for Dismissal – 

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. Review Panel 1 

 

1. Case # 2509 

 

ii. Review Panel 2 

1. Case # 2438 

2. Case # 2473 

3. Case # 2479 

4. Case # 2489 

5. Case # 2500 

 

iii. Review Panel 3 

1. Case # 2501 

2. Case # 2503 

 



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

e. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Remand(s) for Dismissal 

with Letters of Concern – NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330; NRS 631.190 

(For Possible Action) 
*Disclaimer: Please note that older cases will be identified by case numbers, while new and future cases will be 

redacted and referred to by pseudonym in accordance with updated Board confidentiality policy. * 

 

i. Review Panel 2 

1. Dr. A 

2. Case #2028 

3. Case #1964 
 

ii. Review Panel 3 

1. Dr. B 

f. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Authorized Investigation(s) – 

NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. Dr. Z 

ii. Dr. Y 

iii. Dr. X 

 

6. New Business: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Revised Disciplinary 
Case Review and Resolution Matrix - NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

b. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of a $100 Preparation Fee for 
Review Panel Members to Review Case Files Prior to the Review Panel Discussions- 
NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

c. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Board Bylaws on Board 
Member and Board Agent Compensation and Reimbursement Rates- NRS 631.190 
(For Possible Action) 
 

d. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Permanent Anesthesia 
Permit – NAC 631.2213; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

i. Michael D. Pearson, DMD – Pediatric Moderate Sedation 
ii. Tiffany Lu, DMD – Pediatric Moderate Sedation 

iii. Brennan Truman, DMD – Pediatric Moderate Sedation 
iv. David Lee, DMD – Moderate Sedation 

 



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

e. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia 
Permit – NAC 631.2213; NAC 631.2254; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

i. Dr. Caitlin M. Caraballo, DDS – Moderate Sedation 
ii. Dr. Joseph N. Taylor, DDS – Moderate Sedation 

iii. Dr. Robert Rodriguez, DMD – Moderate Sedation 
 

f. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of 90-Day Extension of 
Temporary Anesthesia Permit – NAC 631.2213; NAC 631.2254; NRS 631.190 (For 
Possible Action) 
 

i. Dr. Amir H. Mossadegh, DDS – Moderate Sedation 
 

g. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Voluntary Surrender of 
License –NRS 631.190; NAC 631.160 (For Possible Action)  

 
i. Dr. Nelson Poliran Jr.  

 
h. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Submission of the FY25 

Financial Audit Report to the Nevada State Legislative Counsel Bureau – NRS 631. 
190 (For Possible Action) 
 

7. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment 
period is for any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon 
the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the 
agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable 
time, place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson 
may allow additional time at his/her discretion.  

 
Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Monday, November 10, 2025, by 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record.  

 
In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chairperson may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a 
topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 
or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of 
speakers.  

 
8. Announcements:  
 
9. Adjournment: (For Possible Action) 
 
 
Note: To minimize computer resource and data storage drains, only the copies of the applications (redacted to 
exclude personal identifying or personal health information) are included with this agenda. However, the Board 
acknowledges that some records attached to the applications (aside from any included proprietary information, but 
including such things as permits, licenses, route maps, etc.) are generally public records. The Board will make 
available copies of the non-confidential documents attached to the applications to any member of the public upon 
request. 



 



�

�

�

� � � �

�

�
��������	
���

�
����
��

����	
�����������

���

����� 
��

�

�

� �

�

�

�

!�"	�����������

#$%���& �' 
��

�

(�)	"�*++	����

,�-!-���-!-�

./��0�1�$��'2�

300�����

�

456787�9:7:5�;<<=4;>7:?4�@A?BA7<�C49;@D�E7FGBA?=48�

*HH
�I��	�����JK�KKK�	�L��)��"�����M"�������	��)������	�����	
�N
���O	���"�PH
�O�"�	����

��)�	)�)��
�����
����H���	���")-�(��L"�+	���")��	O��)�Q"�N��	"����
��L������
�������	"��

��
�	�����	��"Q������
�"�	"��	�L��)��"�����M"�������	��)�	"��Q���	���-�R���S�"��
)�N�
�!�)�	)��

S�"�
���	"��,
�O�"���"�TS!SU��)���	��)���	��O	���"	���"��N������
�"���
"����V��"�WXXY�	"��

ZKZ[��"�����M-�-�V����H
�O�"��JK\�������"����"�))�)�����H�	O����W�WZX�KKK���	��)�	"��)	O��"�	
���]Z-̂�

�
�����"��"����	��)�����	����)�)�T��	���"��L��)�]JYK�������"��"���
������)�)U-�(��L"�+	���")�	
��	"��

��"��"L���������"���N�������)����)�P�NN����O���������N�
���H
�O�"Q��O�
	���HL�������	���-��

�
_̀ ����(a��
bc�defgh�ij�beklmlnj�joloepime�iqqrsitloius�isvuwqloius�jxjoeq�yggz{|�ggz�lwe�}usvimesoil~��
H�HL�	���"P�	)�����"��"�����HL��
�+����	�	�	)�)���	����������O	���"	���"��	�	��"��"��O��L	�)��"�
	�)H���N���Q��Q
	H����	
�	��)L���	)�	�)�	��-�R����	
��L)���	)�	���������Q	���
�O	���"	���"�
���
�)�
N
����L���H�����	����	
��H
�O���
)�	"����")����	���������"��"�����	���"-��
�
!L
�"Q�����̂Y���_�O	�	���Q�)�	��O����))��"��_�O	�	���O�)�����	�L��)�T_��U�Y[X-Z�J�V	)�H	))���
�"����	V-�R��)�)�	�L����	��"Q�V����_�O	�	�*���"�)�
	��O��S����T_*SU�Y[X-\̂K���
�LQ��Y[X-\X̂��
�"��L)�O���
��L�
�)�	"����	����	
��H
�O���
�V���	���"�)��
)�*S(,P
������"����O	���"�)����
�����
�"�	"���
�	�L��)����
���
������	���"�)�
	���"��N��������L"�+	���"T)U��"�_̀ ����(a��
�loiesoj�weolis�o�e�wi��o�ou��u�oPuro��uv�is}~rjius�is�o�e�ggz|��
_̀ ����(a��)�	"��"��Q
	��H	
���N����L"�+	���"�	"��HL�������	����	���O����)-����	����	V�
��L�
�)�

�H�
��"Q��N�	������L"�+	���")�	���"�)��
����"�_�O	�	���"��L��"Q���
�	�"�H	���"�����	��)��
H	���"�)�
��	�"�����
�Q�������H�P�L���N��"��L)��"��"�����((�-��!	�	�)��
����"�_̀ ����(a�	
��L)������
jr��uwo�qemi}l~��wukimewjn�l}}rwloe�lsm�oiqe~x�lmqisijowloius�uv�we}uqqesmem�
���L"�+	���")�������"���
�	"��	���L"��N�
�����L)���N�HL�������NL"����O	���"����)�)��������"��N��
H�HL�	���")�	��
�)���"������O�"���N�	�O	���"�PH
�O�"�	������)�	)���L��
�	������)LHH�
��HL�����
��	�����"O�)��Q	���")��	"������
�O��H
�Q
	��	����H�	""�"Q��)L���	)�����
��"�"Q�	
�	)��N���V�
���L"�+	���"���O�
	Q��N�
��	
Q������"��
O�"���"-��*������"	���������)�)����N	�����	��)��
��
�"Q��N�
HL�������NL"����O	���"�)�������
�"����I��	"Q���N��	�	�V����L"�����)�)���)���	)���	"	Q���"��
N�
�����,�
�"	�	����H	����)���,
�O�"���"�,
�Q
	���	"��Q�"�
	���"��N�
��L)��
�H�
�)�N�
�
��L�
���
�L	�����	))L
	"���	"����H
�O���"��	���O����)-��_̀ ����(a�)LHH�
�)�����)L���))NL����"�L����N�

��L�
���(��L"�+	���"�,
�Q
	��	���O����)-��_̀ ����(a���"��"L�)�����������)�L
���N�
�	���HL����P
N	��"Q�!,���O	���"	���"��	)���	
�)-��
�
*)��N��	"L	
��ZKZJ��_̀ ����(a��	)���

�� �O�
�J��KK�KKK�H	���"��
���
�)��
�� �O�
��K�KKK�KKK�O	���"	���"��O�"�)��
�� Z�KWY��
Q	"�+	���")�
�H
�)�"��"Q�[�W�Y����	���")��	"���



�

�

������������

	 	 	 	


� ���
������������������
����
�

����������
�������������������
���
�����

� ����
��
�������������������
�������� ��
���������������

� ����
��
������������������ ��
�������!��
���
�

�������"���#�!������������������������ ���$�����
��������
��������$������������!���
����������
%&'()*+%,�-./%*�0%.%00%1�/-�)2�)*�34*/%0.)'%5�6%/7%%*�89�:%6;<�)*1�)*�)=/(-04>%1�(%)?/(')0%�
@0-A41%0B2�%?%'/0-*4'�C%14')?D(%)?/(�0%'-01�2E2/%C�FGHIDGJIKL��MN�O�PQR����������������
 �
������
��S��!���T���!�U�VSTUW���
������������
�����!����
���
�����X�
�
�Y�������������������������
1)/),�-./%*�4CC%14)/%?E,�-0�4*�30%)?�/4C%L5��Q�����#�����������������
���
��������#�����
�$$���Z�������[�
��
���
��������STU��\�����]����
 ��������


� _̂̀�?-')/4-*2�-*?E�0%@-0/�1)/)�A4)�Jâ�F3=*4140%'/4-*)?5K,��

� ����!���������
���
��bcd�0%e=%2/�1)/)�A4)�Jâ�F364140%'/4-*)?5K,�)*1��

� _̀f�?-')/4-*2�-*?E�0%e=%2/�1)/)�A4)�Jâ�F3e=%0Eg-*?E5KL��

S��!����
���
�����
���
�������
���������$�!�$����P���
�������!��h������������i���������������
�����$$���Z�����������
 ���������
������
������������������
���P �MN�O�PQR���
�
MN�O�PQR�����!���������������
����������������j����
��.-0�k42%)2%�l-*/0-?�)*1�m0%A%*/4-*B2�FlklK�
QR�n���[� ��o���QR�n���[� �����!�����������
���!���
������
���$�����������$$���Z��������������
[� �������[�
����������!�P!����! �����[� ��
��������8%A)1)B2�%*+)+%C%*/�74/(�/(%�;<�p)/%7)E�
4*'?=1%2�%&'()*+%�-.�1)/)�74/(�/%*q�F̀fK�-/(%0�r=04214'/4-*2B�;;s�/-�2=@@-0/�4*1������!������������
$��������������
�!�������������
��
���
�����������������������������jtj������$�!������[�����
����

�Y��
�$�����V�������
���� ��
���
�����u���
��T��i������
���uTW��P���
�������!��h�������[�����!!�
8%A)1)B2�9%/%0)*2�J%)?/(�v1C4*42/0)/4-*�A)''4*)/4*+�'?4*4'2,�)*1�0%'%4@/�-.�4CC=*4>)/4-*�1)/)�
��
�
��������
�!�����������M��������w���
���!������P�����������!�����h���������������[����
t���
�$�������t�������!������������M��������
xyz{bc|b|}�~�cc�������}����b�bz�}��bc|b|}���c���{�}�����������}�����bd�����b}��{�b���b}��z���c}�bcd���b���
�

N��i���Q������\�
��
����j������j��!���w�$�! ������j�$$���� �O�!!�����VjwjOW���
M������t���
�$�������S�$�����
�������t��S��
VUU�W���#g������
���������!�����������
�
o�$��j�������S��
t���� ���
����j������jwjO��
M������t���
�$�������S�$�����
�������t��S��
VUU�W���#g#��"��
���������!��������������
��
\$�����V���� W�S�

����
QQ��Q����
������������
��M�Q����
M������t���
�$�������S�$�����
�������t��S�
VUU�W���#g#�����
����

������!�����������



 







 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA

MEETING MINUTES 

Meeting Date & Time
Wednesday, October 15, 2025

6:00 p.m.

Meeting Location
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
2651 N. Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104

Henderson, NV 89014

Video Conferencing/ Teleconferencing Available
To access by phone, +1(646) 568-7788

To access by video webinar, 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88572234048
Webinar/Meeting ID#: 885 7223 4048
Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 522693

PUBLIC NOTICE:
Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available 
after roll call (beginning of meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3)
minutes for each individual.

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 
N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address
nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, October 14, 2025, by 12:00 p.m.
may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the 
adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing
before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 
3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, 
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the
commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an 
individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126.

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State 

JOE LOMBARDO
Governor

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ
Director

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAG

MARCEL F. SCHAERER
Deputy Directors

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAM
Executive Director



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

Board of Dental Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone 
conference, it is possible that an amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended
Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the 
meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48
hours prior to the meeting. Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed.

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you
may download the supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the 
supporting materials for the public body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, 
Henderson, NV 89014.

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 
Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table it. 

1. Call to Order

a. Roll Call/Quorum

Board Members’ Present: Dr. Ron West (President), Dr. Daniel Streifel (Secretary-

Treasurer), Dr. Joshua Branco, Dr. Lance Kim, Dr. Christopher Hock, Ms. Jana 

McIntyre, Ms. Yamilka Arias, Ms. Kimberly Petrilla, Dr. Joan Landron, Dr. Ashley 

Hoban. 

Board Members’ Absent: Mr. Michael Pontoni, Esq. 

Board Staff Present: Executive Director Higginbotham, General Counsel Barraclough, A. 

Cymerman, L. Chagolla.

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted 
email/written form): The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on the 
agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during the public comment unless the matter itself has 
been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) 
minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not be limited to based upon viewpoint. The 
Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing 
messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, October 14, 2025, 
at 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions 
received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting 
Law Manual, the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or 
within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the 
meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to 
personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. 

NA



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

3. President’s Report: (For Possible Action)

a. Request to Remove Agenda Item(s) (For Possible Action)

NA

b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action)

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Dr. Streifel, and it was seconded by 

Ms. McIntyre. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

4. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report: (For Possible Action)

a. Approval/Rejection of Minutes – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. August 13, 2025 – Board Meeting Minutes

ii. August 13, 2025 – Emergency Board Meeting Minutes

iii. October 1, 2025 – CE Committee Meeting Minutes

iv. October 1, 2025 – Dental Hygiene, Dental Therapy, and EFDA Committee

Meeting Minutes

A motion to group and approve the meeting minutes was made by Ms. McIntyre, 

and it was seconded by Ms. Arias. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

5. Executive Team Report: (For Possible Action)

a. Legal Actions/Litigation Update (For Informational Purposes Only)

General Counsel Barraclough provided an update on the one active litigation 

matter. The plaintiff’s motion to amend was denied by the federal district court. 

Depositions are scheduled, and discovery has been extended through December. 

The plaintiff declined the Board’s recent settlement offer. The case continues 

under the representation of outside counsel, and further updates will be provided 

following completion of discovery.

b. Regulatory Update (For Informational Purposes Only)

i. LCB R058-24 Anesthesia Regulations Update

ii. LCB R056-24 Teledentistry Regulations Update

General Counsel Barraclough communicated that the anesthesia and teledentistry 

regulations are currently in progress with the LCB and are expected to be 

completed and presented to the Board at the November meeting.

c. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Remand(s) – NRS 631.3635; 

NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. Review Panel 1

1. Case # 1586

2. Case # 1731

3. Case # 1881

4. Case # 2107

A motion to group and approve Review Panel 1 cases was made by Dr. Streifel, and 

it was seconded by Ms. Petrilla. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

ii. Review Panel 3

1. Case #1828

2. Case # 2491

A motion to group and approve Review Panel 3 cases was made by Ms. Arias, and it 

was seconded by Dr. Kim. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

d. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Authorized Investigation(s) –

NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. Dr. V

ii. Dr. W

General Counsel Barraclough communicated the process for investigating 

reciprocal violations reported by other boards. Regarding Dr. V and Dr. W, such 

investigations determine whether a licensee’s failure to self-report or pay fines to 

the Radiation Board reflects issues of moral character or intent. If approved, the 

investigator’s findings are then presented to the Board to decide if further action is 

warranted.

Dr. West communicated his agreement that Dr. V and Dr. W should have paid 

their fines to the Radiation Board but voiced his concern about the Dental Board 

using resources to collect the fine. 

General Counsel Barraclough clarified that enforcement of fines rests with the 

Radiation Board, not the Dental Board. The Dental Board’s role is to assess 

whether a licensee’s failure to self-report or pay such fines affects their 

professional conduct or ability to practice safely. Depending on the investigator’s 

findings, the Board may choose to dismiss the matter or refer it to a review panel 

for further action.



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

Dr. Branco expressed his agreement that if the actions by Dr. V and Dr. W are 

habitual then there is more cause for concern. Stated his support for an 

investigation at that point. 

Ms. Petrilla communicated her support for an investigation.

A motion was made to group and approve authorized investigations for Dr. V and 

Dr. W by Dr. West, and it was seconded by Ms. Arias. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

iii. Dr. X

Dr. West communicated the circumstances of this case, and asked Dr. Branco for 

his thoughts.

Dr. Branco communicated his support for opening an investigation. 

A motion was made to approve authorized investigation by Dr. Branco, and it was 

seconded by Dr. West. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

iv. Dr. Y

General Counsel Barraclough noted for the record that the Attorney General’s 

Office is conducting a Medicaid Fraud Control Unit investigation related to Dr Y, 

which would run concurrently with any Board-authorized investigation.

A motion was made to approve authorized investigation by Dr. West, and it was 

seconded by Ms. Arias. 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

v. Dr. Z 

A motion was made to approve authorized investigation by Dr. West, and it was 

seconded by Ms. Petrilla. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

e. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Stipulation(s) - NRS 

631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

1. Case # 2380

2. Case #2402

3. Case #2490

A motion to group and approve stipulations was made by Dr. Hoban, and it was 

seconded by Dr. Kim. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

6. New Business: (For Possible Action)

a. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the CY2026 Board Meeting 

Agenda - NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. January 28, 2026 (Wednesday) 

ii. February 25, 2026 (Wednesday) 

iii. March 25, 2026 (Wednesday) 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

iv. April 29, 2026 (Wednesday)

v. May 27, 2026 (Wednesday)

vi. July 29, 2026 (Wednesday)

vii. August 26, 2026 (Wednesday)

viii. September 30, 2026 (Wednesday)

ix. October 28, 2026 (Wednesday)

x. November 18, 2026 (Wednesday)

xi. December 11, 2026 (Friday)

Dr. West inquired about the shift of moving 2026 Board meetings to the end of the 

month.

Director Higginbotham communicated the meeting schedule was adjusted to late 

in the month to align with monthly work wrap-ups and review panel meetings. The 

June meeting will be skipped to better accommodate the June–July renewal 

period and fiscal year closeout.

A motion to approve the CY2026 Board Meeting schedule was made by Dr. Hock, 

and it was seconded by Ms. McIntyre. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

b. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Disciplinary Case Review 

and Resolution Matrix - NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

General Counsel Barraclough discussed the new comprehensive disciplinary 

matrix to ensure consistency and compliance with the National Practitioner Data 

Bank. Non-disciplinary stipulations will no longer be used. Options for handling 

lesser infractions include non-publication on the Board’s website or issuing letters 

of concern about best practice issues. Board members were asked to consider 

these options when voting on Section I of the matrix.

Dr. Kim inquired for clarification on the the use for the letter of concern and if 

those were to be issued for those who are issued remands. 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

General Counsel Barraclough clarified that letters of concern are used for cases 

where no violation occurred, but a best practice issue is noted. The letter would be 

drafted by staff, signed by the Board, and follow the format used by the Medical 

Board.

Dr. West communicated support for using letters of concern for issues that are not 

violations but fall short of best practices. He inquired about the draft framework 

and whether it could be adjusted in the future, confirming that modifications 

could be made after initial implementation.

General Counsel Barraclough noted that the letter of concern and can be revised 

based on experience in the future. Letters of concern may be used for non-punitive 

guidance but cannot include mandatory actions or requirements. 

Dr. Hoban inquired about if a letter of concern recipient repeats the same action, 

if the matter can escalate to punitive action or if it would remain at the level of just 

the letter of concern. 

General Counsel Barraclough clarified that each case is its own case so the Board 

can proceed with whatever action they wish in each case. However, if the recipient

does repeat the same action the previously issued letter of concern can be seen as a 

potentially aggravating factor under this new disciplinary matrix. 

Dr. Landron inquired if letters of concern would apply to stipulations. 

General Counsel Barraclough clarified that letters of concern are used solely for 

best practice issues, not violations of law, and must include no mandatory 

requirements; any required action would make it a formal stipulation.

Dr. Kim inquired and suggested that the Board track which licensees are issued 

letters of concerns, for if it would become an aggravating factor for future 

violations. 

General Counsel Barraclough relayed that at this time there is not a way to track 

this items, and currently it would rely on Board staff and Review panel members 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

to recognize the licensee but Board staff would be open to implementing a system. 

Dr. West inquired about what the National Practitioner Data Bank uses the 

reported stipulations/disciplinary actions for and what is done when they receive 

them. 

General Counsel Barraclough relayed that it is governed by federal law and their 

process, including any appeals, is determined by that agency. She will follow up 

with details on the federal process.

Dr. Landron inquired if the information from the National Practitioner Data Bank

is reported to insurances etc. 

General Counsel Barraclough confirmed that insurance companies do have access 

to information on the Data Bank and can review it. 

Dr. West expressed a desire to understand how the National Practitioner Data 

Bank handles submissions before fully supporting the proposed disciplinary 

processes and requested staff follow up with more information.

Ms. Arias communicated her agreement with Dr. West. 

General Counsel Barraclough clarified that reporting to the National Practitioner 

Data Bank is legally required, not subject to Board vote. For the disciplinary 

matrix, only Section I (handling of disciplinary vs. non-disciplinary actions, letters 

of concern, and publication) remains for discussion. The Board may vote on the 

rest now and address Section I separately after further review.

Dr. Kim vocalized his support for approving the matrix, except for Section I, and 

asked about a timeline to implement the new matrix. 

General Counsel Barraclough stated the disciplinary matrix can be implemented 

immediately, except for Section I, which may be tabled. The matrix provides 

guidance but is not mandatory, and Board members can seek counsel guidance for 

exceptions. The matrix was developed by analyzing three years of past disciplinary 

cases to establish consistent presumptive, mitigating, and aggravating actions.



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

Ms. Arias clarified if the vote is limited to choosing whether to implement letters of 

concern, the non-publication option, or both, since disciplinary versus non-

disciplinary stipulations are no longer permitted.

General Counsel Barraclough informed that there are two votes: (1) whether to 

implement the disciplinary matrix excluding Section I, and (2) guidance on how 

Section I should be structured after receiving information on the National 

Practitioner Data Bank.

Ms. Arias and Dr. Kim expressed their gratitude to the Board staff for their work 

on the disciplinary matrix. 

A motion to approve the disciplinary matrix, except for Section I, the letter of 

concern, and the proposal of publication/non-publication was made by Dr. Kim, 

and it was seconded by Ms. Arias. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

c. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Board Agents for 

Anesthesia Evaluations- NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. Dr. Spencer Armuth (License # S2-172)

A motion to approve was made by Dr. Branco, and it was seconded by Dr. Hoban.

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

d. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Board Agents for 

Infection Control Inspections- NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. Dr. Christopher LoFrisco (License # 4682)



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

A motion to approve was made by Dr. West, and it was seconded by Dr. Hock. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

e. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia 
Permit – NAC 631.2234; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. Dr. Wilyam F. Abdelmalik, DMD – Moderate Sedation 
ii. Dr. Kevin T. Major, DMD – Moderate Sedation

iii. Dr. Khurram Fahim, DMD – Moderate Sedation

A motion to group and  approve was made by Dr. Branco, and it was seconded by 

Dr. West. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

f. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Re-Evaluation of
Anesthesia Permit Holder – NAC 631.2234; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)

i. Dr. Michael J. Wills, DMD – Moderate Sedation

Dr. Branco communicated that at a new permit holder’s moderate sedation 

evaluation, the applicant did not demonstrate sufficient knowledge and failed. Dr. 

Branco recommended allowing a second evaluation with the stipulation that he 

cannot use his temporary permit until the evaluation, and this is the only re-

evaluation that will be granted. 

Ms. Arias inquired about a time limit for remediation. 

Director Higginbotham communicated that the regulation that the licensee cannot 

re-submit for a re-evaluation after 12 months. 

Dr. Kim inquired if the licensee sought CE per the recommendation from the 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

evaluators. 

Dr. Branco communicated that the Board could deny the permit and stipulate that 

the licensee take additional CE, but if the Board approves a second evaluation that 

they cannot require that.

General Counsel Barraclough communicated that regulations do not allow an 

inspector to require CE for re-permitting; the applicant must retake and pass the 

evaluation. CE requirements would only apply if the Board revokes and considers 

reinstatement.

Dr. Hock reviewed the evaluator’s notes, noting deficiencies in the applicant’s oral 

exam and anesthesia proficiency. Recommended to allow one retake, with a 12-

month waiting period if the applicant fails again.

A motion to approve the re-evaluation was made by Dr. Branco, and it was 

seconded by Dr. West. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

g. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Voluntary Surrender of 
License –NRS 631.190; NAC 631.160 (For Possible Action)

i. Dr. Michael R. Galada, DDS
ii. Dr. Michael J. Susich, DDS

A motion to group and approve was made by Dr. Streifel, and it was seconded by 

Dr. Hoban. 

Dr. Branco inquired about any disciplinary actions pending for either licensee. 

General Counsel Barraclough confirmed that there is no outstanding actions.

No further discussion. 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

7. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment 
period is for any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon 
the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the 
agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable 
time, place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson 
may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, October 14, 2025, by 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chairperson may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a 
topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 
or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of 
speakers. 

NA

8. Announcements:

Dr. West thanked all participants.

9. Adjournment: (For Possible Action)

A motion to adjourn was made by Ms. McIntyre, and it was seconded by Dr. 

Landron. 

No discussion. 

All members’ vote ‘AYE.’

Note: To minimize computer resource and data storage drains, only the copies of the applications (redacted to 
exclude personal identifying or personal health information) are included with this agenda. However, the Board 
acknowledges that some records attached to the applications (aside from any included proprietary information, but 
including such things as permits, licenses, route maps, etc.) are generally public records. The Board will make 
available copies of the non-confidential documents attached to the applications to any member of the public upon 
request



 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA

MEETING MINUTES

Meeting Date & Time
Wednesday, October 29, 2025

6:00 p.m.

Meeting Location
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
2651 N. Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104

Henderson, NV 89014

Video Conferencing/ Teleconferencing Available
To access by phone, +1(646) 568-7788

To access by video webinar, 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81971646204
Webinar/Meeting ID#: 819 7164 6204
Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 066050

PUBLIC NOTICE:
Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available 
after roll call (beginning of meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3)
minutes for each individual.

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 
N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address
nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, October 28, 2025, by 12:00 p.m.
may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the 
adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing
before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 
3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, 
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the
commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an 
individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126.

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State 

JOE LOMBARDO
Governor

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ
Director

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAG

MARCEL F. SCHAERER
Deputy Directors

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAM
Executive Director



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

Board of Dental Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone 
conference, it is possible that an amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended
Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the 
meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48
hours prior to the meeting. Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed.

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you
may download the supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the 
supporting materials for the public body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, 
Henderson, NV 89014.

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 
Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table it. 

1. Call to Order

a. Roll Call/Quorum

Committee Members Present: Dr. Lance Kim (Chair), Ms. Yamilka Arias, Dr. Daniel 

Streifel, Dr. Ashley Hoban. 

Committee Members Absent: NA

Board Staff Present: Director Higginbotham, General Counsel Barraclough, A. 

Cymerman, M. Kelley, M. Ramirez, L. Chagolla. 

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted 
email/written form): The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on 
the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during the public comment unless the 
matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public 
may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not 
be limited to based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record.

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that 
is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the 
content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other 
speakers. 

3. Chairperson’s Report: (For Possible Action)



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

a. Request to Remove Agenda Item(s) (For Possible Action)

NA

b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action)

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Dr. Kim, and it was seconded by Ms. 

Arias. 

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE’.

4. New Business: (For Possible Action)

a. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Continuing Education 
Provider Course Application – NRS 631.342, NRS631.90 (For Possible Action)

i. Emergencies in the Dental Office

Dr. Kim communicated that this course is hosted by Dr. Michel Daccache and the 
course is seeking 2 CE credit hours. 

Ms. Arias recommended that the course add the name to the completion 
certificate. 

Dr. Kim invited Dr. Daccache to speak regarding his course. 

Dr. Daccache confirmed that he would add the course title to the certificate. 

Dr. Hoban asked for clarification on who the target audience of the course is. 

Dr. Daccache communicated that this course is intended to be more of an overview 
for all staff in a dental office. He communicated the course is an overview of 
scenarios he has encountered in the office and wants to invite all personnel to 
receive this training to be better prepared. 

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Dr. Kim, and it was seconded by Ms. 

Arias. 

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE’.



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

5. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment 
period is for any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon 
the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the 
agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable 
time, place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson 
may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, October 28, 2025, by 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chairperson may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a 
topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 
or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of 
speakers. 

NA

6. Announcements:

Dr. Kim thanked Dr. Daccache for his participation and answering committee 
questions about the course. 

7. Adjournment: (For Possible Action)

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Dr. Streifel, and it was seconded by 

Dr. Hoban. 

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE’.

Note: To minimize computer resource and data storage drains, only the copies of the applications (redacted to 
exclude personal identifying or personal health information) are included with this agenda. However, the Board 
acknowledges that some records attached to the applications (aside from any included proprietary information, but 
including such things as permits, licenses, route maps, etc.) are generally public records. The Board will make 
available copies of the non-confidential documents attached to the applications to any member of the public upon 
request



 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA

MEETING MINUTES

Meeting Date & Time
Wednesday, October 29, 2025

6:30 p.m.

Meeting Location
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
2651 N. Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104

Henderson, NV 89014

Video Conferencing/ Teleconferencing Available
To access by phone, +1(646) 568-7788

To access by video webinar, 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82394649247
Webinar/Meeting ID#: 823 9464 9247
Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 305363

PUBLIC NOTICE:
Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available 
after roll call (beginning of meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3)
minutes for each individual.

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 
N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address
nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, October 28, 2025, by 12:00 p.m.
may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the 
adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing
before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 
3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, 
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the
commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an 
individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126.

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State 

JOE LOMBARDO
Governor

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ
Director

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAG

MARCEL F. SCHAERER
Deputy Directors

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAM
Executive Director



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

Board of Dental Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone 
conference, it is possible that an amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended
Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the 
meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48
hours prior to the meeting. Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed.

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you
may download the supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the 
supporting materials for the public body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, 
Henderson, NV 89014.

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 
Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table it. 

1. Call to Order

a. Roll Call/Quorum

Board Members Present: Ms. Kimberly Petrilla (Chair), Dr. Joshua Branco, Dr. Daniel 
Streifel, Dr. Joan Landron, Dr. Ashley Hoban. 

Board Members Absent: NA

Board Staff Present: Director Higginbotham, General Counsel Barraclough, A. 
Cymerman, M. Kelley, M. Ramirez, L. Chagolla. 

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted 
email/written form): The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on 
the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during the public comment unless the 
matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public 
may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not 
be limited to based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record.

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that 
is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the 
content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other 
speakers. 

Director Higginbotham noted a late public comment from Tracy Wells of 
Compliance Alliance, included in the Board packet. The comment raised questions 
regarding acceptance of hard copy versus electronic copies and other related items
where clarification is needed Staff will follow up with Ms. Wells based on the 
committee’s direction.

Samantha Sturges, former Board infection control inspector, provided several 
suggestions including noting a spelling error, reviewing proposed changes to 
waterline testing frequency, clarifying terminology for designated clean and dirty 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

areas, and reconsidering the requirement for daily cleaning logs to avoid excessive 
burden on offices.

A public comment was received from Kelly Taylor, RDH, expressing concern about 
mandatory TB testing. She noted her belief that CDC and OSHA guidelines since 
2019 recommend event-based testing following potential exposure rather than 
routine mandatory testing. 

Samantha Sturges noted that the current CDC recommendation is that all 
employees are tested upon hire.

3. Chairperson’s Report: (For Possible Action)

a. Request to Remove Agenda Item(s) (For Possible Action)

NA

b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action)

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Dr. Branco, and it was seconded by 
Dr. Streifel. 

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE.’

4. New Business: (For Possible Action)

a. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Infection Control Inspection 
Documents – NAC 631.1785 (For Possible Action)

i. Infection Control Inspection Application

Director Higginbotham communicated that the new infection control inspection 
application combines the dental practice management form and the initial 
inspection request form into one. This change addresses past data gaps during 
ownership transfers and ensures a streamlined, single-step process without 
duplicate applications.

Dr. Branco inquired about the section noting services delivered/goods sold in the 
application and why the Board would need to know this information. 

Director Higginbotham communicated that this section previously existed and was 
redone when merging the two forms into one. This format allows for categorical 
service listings instead of open-ended responses. While the Board does not 
currently tailor inspections based on selected services, collecting this information 



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

may be useful for future regulatory requirements or requests from other 
government entities.

Ms. Petrilla communicated her agreement with Dr. Branco, noting that she likes 
the ‘dental procedures delivered’ section but would suggest removing the ‘goods 
sold’ section. 

Dr. Branco noted that he feels that asking for a list of ‘goods sold’ is out of the 
jurisdiction of the dental board, and that he is otherwise fine with the application 
revisions presented.

General Counsel Barraclough communicated that certain statutes (NRS 630.1.3455 
and 3456) govern the provision of goods to dental offices to prevent unlicensed 
practice of dentistry. She suggested the Board consider whether collecting 
information on vendors and services is appropriate and whether infection control 
forms are the correct data point for this information.

A motion to approve the application, with the removal of the question regarding 
products sold was made by Dr. Branco, and it was seconded by Ms. Petrilla. 

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE.’

ii. Infection Control Inspection Survey Form 

Director Higginbotham requested that when discussing the survey form, each 
speaker reference the question number for tracking purposes. 

The committee reviewed the infection control survey form in its entirety, 
evaluating each of the 79 questions for relevancy, accuracy, and consistency with 
CDC guidelines as adopted in Nevada regulations. Board staff will further research 
and clarify specific line items identified during the discussion and provide 
additional information to the committee for future consideration.

Director Higginbotham communicated what the committee reviewed and 
proposed the following revisions/clarifications to the Infection Control Inspection 
Form:  

-  Question 1: Allow digital versions to be acceptable; ensure the form is accessible; remove the 
“Infection Control Coordinator” name field.
- Question 2: Replace the word “training” with “policy.”
- Questions 8 & 10: Require further research and will be brought back to the committee; 
Question 10 specifically to determine if there is a regulatory requirement to include TB testing in 
the checklist.
- Question 11: Remove item number six - Meningococcal vaccine to be confirmed. 
- Question 12: Confirm if the question references the OSHA 300 log.
- Question 17: Determine if demonstration of handwashing is required; if not, merge with 
Question 15.
- Question 20: Correct spelling of “performed.”
- Question 24: Eliminate demonstration requirement.
- Question 29: Eliminate demonstration requirement.
- Question 34: Condense the four marking sections to two -“clean” or “dirty.”
- Question 40: Correct spelling for “performed” and “processing.”



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

- Question 42: Confirm retention period is two years, not three.
- Question 48: Research mail-in versus in-office waterline testing and determine frequency 
ratios.
- Question 50: Verify if loading technique is referenceable; research if event-related 
monitoring or item tracking is required (possible reference to Question 51).
- Question 52: Confirm details with Ms. Sturgis and report findings back to the committee.
- Questions 62 & 62a: Research to confirm these are not duplicate items; verify definition of 
“biological spill kit.”
- Question 64: Determine if documentation is required.
- Question 65: Determine if documentation is required.
- Question 71: Confirm requirements for use of sterile water coolant during surgical 
procedures and whether this question is necessary.
- Question 75: Correct spelling of “applicable.”
- Question 77: Remove the phrase “running water” to read only, “Is there an eyewash station 
available?”
- Questions 78 & 79: Relocate these questions to Section Five.

Director Higginbotham communicated that after the suggested revisions are 
researched or changes made, another Infection Control Committee meeting will be 
called to review the revised survey form. 

A motion to table the Infection Control Inspection Survey Form was made by Ms. 
Petrilla, and it was seconded by Dr. Branco. 

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE.’

5. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment 
period is for any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon 
the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the 
agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable 
time, place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson 
may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, October 28, 2025, by 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any 
other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chairperson may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a 
topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 
or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of 
speakers. 

Samantha Sturges, former Board infection control inspector, thanked the 
committee for their work and offered assistance in locating specific CDC policy 
references related to several survey form items previously flagged for further 
research, including items on TB testing and blood spill kits. The commenter noted 
extensive experience with CDC infection control guidelines and offered to meet 
with Board staff to provide page references and clarification to support the 
committee’s review.



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

6. Announcements:  

Director Higginbotham thanked the team and industry representatives for their 
feedback and participation in strengthening the Board’s infection control 
protocols. He noted that all comments and suggestions are being reviewed and 
considered for incorporation to ensure the final product is comprehensive and 
something the Board can be proud of.

7. Adjournment: (For Possible Action)

A motion to adjourn was made by Dr. Branco, and it was seconded by Dr. Landron.

No discussion. 

All members voted ‘AYE.’

Note: To minimize computer resource and data storage drains, only the copies of the applications (redacted to 
exclude personal identifying or personal health information) are included with this agenda. However, the Board 
acknowledges that some records attached to the applications (aside from any included proprietary information, but 
including such things as permits, licenses, route maps, etc.) are generally public records. The Board will make 
available copies of the non-confidential documents attached to the applications to any member of the public upon 
request



    

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov



 



�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��

�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�



�
��
�
��
 
�
!

"
#
$
%
&
$

"
&
'
()

*
+
"
,
"

�
�
�
-

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

"
#
.
$
/

"
.
0
($
(1
#
2

3
+
"
"
4

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

5
&
)
)
&

6
&
7&
$
)
2
2
8

6
+
"
,
"

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

3
&
99#
7(

:
&
7(
8
7(
;
&

"
"
4

�
�
�
<

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

,
&
99&
'
&
7&
8
#

*
&
=
>
?
0
(

:
+
"
"
4

�
�
@
 

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

4
?
2
9A
.
$

:
2
$
$
;

B
+
"
"
4

�
�
@
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

C
.
#
$
/
2
7

D
;
2
>
?
&

D
+
"
,
"

�
�
@
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

E
9&
2
>

F
$
$
&
�6
&
A7
($
&
G
+
"
"
4

�
�
@
@

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

,
#
%
=
92
H
(%
I

"
&
7(
&

,
+
"
,
"

�
�
@
J

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

,
(99
2
7

*
#
%
&
>

F
+
"
,
"

�
�
@
!

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

D
7&
$

F
$
KL
($
?

M
+
"
,
"

�
�
@
-

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

B
(9&
$
(

:
2
0
$
&

3
+
"
,
"

�
�
@
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

5
&
77
&
�4
&
$
&
N
7(
&

O
7(
=
&

F
+
"
"
4

�
�
@
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

P
&
8
&
$
A&

B
#
9(&
$
$
2

Q
+
"
,
"

�
�
@
<

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

Q
&
?
&
7

3
&
>
A&
7&
$

"
,
"

�
�
J
 

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

4
&
0
8
>
.
$

B
&
I
0
;
$

D
+
"
,
"

�
�
J
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

"
&
$
�R
)
.
=
&

O
A2
2
A2

S
+
"
"
4

*
*
K-
�
@
K�
!

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

4
?
2
$

6
7(
>
A2
$

F
+
"
,
"

*
*
K-
�
J
K�
!

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

,
%
3
&
N
N

O
9(I
&
N
2
A?

S
+
"
"
4

*
*
K-
�
!
K�
-

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

4
(9'
2
>
A7
;

Q
7&
$
)
.
$

F
+
"
,
"

*
*
K-
�
-
K�
!

�
��
�
��
 
�
!

5
2
77
;

B
.
?
$

T
+
"
,
"

�
�
J
�

�
��
��
 
�
!

G
&
77
(I
&
92
>
�,
2
92
$
)
2
I

F
$
)
72
&

O
+
"
"
4

*
*
K-
�
<
K�
!



�
�
��
��
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��

�
	

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

 
!
"
##$
%

&
"
''
"
%(

)
*
+
,
+

�
�
-
.

�
��
��
�
�
�

,
/
0
$
%1
2
3

4
(
5
$

+
,
+

�
�
-
-

�
��
��
�
�
�

6
!
7
%$
8

&
3##

)
*
+
,
+

�
�
-
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

9
/
#/
:

6
$
5
$
;
12
$

+
+
6

�
�
-
<

�
��
��
�
�
�

=
/
;
>

+
$
%%
"
;

+
*
+
+
6

�
�
-
?

�
��
��
�
�
�

@
$
5

+
$
;
3"
#

+
,
+

�
�
-
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

@
$
A
3%

)
5
$
5
$

+
+
6

�
�
-
B

�
��
��
�
�
�

,
C
 
/
%5
3C
7

 
2
%3
A
1/
0
2
"
%

&
*
+
+
6

�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

D
#1
$
>
!
;
:
"

+
3$
;
;
"

D
*
+
,
+

�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

E
"
"

F
"
/
5
�G
/
!
;
>

+
,
+

�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

E
3;

6
!
5
5
"
%

+
,
+

�
�
�
.

�
��
��
�
�
�

 
2
/

&
$
A
/
;

&
*
+
,
+

�
�
�
-

�
��
��
�
�
�

)
5
H
"
A
2

4
"
;
;
$

+
+
6

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

=
/
/

4
8
!
7
� 
2
$
;

+
+
6

�
�
�
<

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

&
"
;
>

 
2
"
A
1"
%

 
*
+
+
6

�
�
�
?

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

 
2
!
;
>

I
"
3�
&
!
;
>

+
,
+

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

6
/
;
>

&
$
A
/
;

J
*
+
+
6

�
�
�
B

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

K
%3
"
A
"
;

I
2
3#3
0

&
*
+
,
+

�
�
<
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

L
#A
"
;

M
"
##(

&
+
+
6

E
E
N<
�
�
N�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

,
/
/
A
/

F
%"
11

+
+
6

6
.
N-
�
�
 

B
��
��
�
�
�

@
>
!
(
"
;

M
3"
!
�+
3"
5

9
*
+
+
6

�
.
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

L
2

+
$
2
/
/
;

+
+
6

�
.
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

@
"
#A
"
;

,
3C
2
$
"
#

F
*
+
,
+

�
.
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

+
!
H
$
;
A
7
3

O
/
H
"
%1

+
*
+
,
+

�
.
�
.



�
�
��
��
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��

�
	

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

�
 
!
"
#
 
$%

&
'
(
(

�
)
*
+
*

,
-
�
.

�
��
��
�
�
�

/
0
"
(
!
$ 
"

1
223
4
'
"

1
)
*
+
*

,
-
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

5
2'
#
"

�
'
6
7
 
22 

8
)
*
+
*

,
-
�
9

�
��
��
�
�
�

:
3;

/
323
#
"

<
)
*
+
*

,
-
�
=

�
��
��
�
�
�

:
3"
!
 
$>

?
#
%7
#
"

5
)
*
+
*

,
-
�
,

�
��
��
�
�
�

@
2'
0
!
7

@
$3
#
"

A
)
*
*
5

,
-
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

?
!
0
>
 
"

A
23B
#
C
 
%7

*
*
5

,
-
D
�

�
�D
�
��
�
�
�

+
0
7
#
;
;
#
(

1
E
#
;

*
*
5

,
-
D
D

�
�D
�
��
�
�
�

<
#
;
 
(
3#
"

+
#
2#
E

1
)
*
+
*

,
-
D
�

�
�D
�
��
�
�
�

/
 
 

F
0
"
(
'
"
!

*
*
5

,
-
D
-

�
�D
�
��
�
�
�

G
#
(
322
#

+
3!
0
 
2

1
)
*
+
*

,
-
D
.

�
�D
�
��
�
�
�

5
6
'
%%

H
'
"
"
'
$

�
)
*
+
*

,
-
D
�

�
�D
�
��
�
�
�

H
7
#
"
!

8
3"
I<
#
'

*
+
*

,
-
D
9

�
��
9
��
�
�
�

&
#
J
 
2�
5
#
"
%'
4

@
#
$C
#
$#

5
)
*
+
*

,
-
D
=

�
��
9
��
�
�
�

H
7
 
0
"
!

:
 
"
"
>

:
)
*
*
5

,
-
D
,

�
��
9
��
�
�
�

5
;
3%
7

H
7
$3
4
%'
K
7
 
$

8
)
*
*
5

,
-
D
�

D
�
�D
��
�
�
�

&
0
"
!
'
2

L
 
$(
3"
#
"
(

�
)
*
*
5

,
-
�
�

D
�
��
.
��
�
�
�

5
#
M3(

�
3(
#

*
+
*

,
-
�
D

D
�
��
.
��
�
�
�

@
#
$3
"

@
3#
"
6
#

1
)
*
+
*

,
-
�
�



 



Li
ce

ns
e 

A
pp

ro
va

ls

D
at

e 
of

 L
ic

en
se

 A
pp

ro
va

l
La

st
 N

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e
M

I
Ti

tle
Li

ce
ns

e 
N

um
be

r

7/
18

/2
02

5
Br

uc
e

Sh
er

ry
R

D
H

10
32

27

7/
18

/2
02

5
R

ho
ad

es
Ve

ro
ni

ka
A.

R
D

H
10

32
28

7/
18

/2
02

5
C

ep
in

R
os

e
N

.
R

D
H

10
32

29

7/
18

/2
02

5
H

um
m

el
Al

lie
J.

R
D

H
10

32
30

7/
18

/2
02

5
C

om
bs

M
ad

is
on

C
.

R
D

H
10

32
31

7/
18

/2
02

5
Sm

ith
Jo

rd
an

P.
R

D
H

10
32

32

7/
18

/2
02

5
Sm

ith
Ki

er
a

M
.

R
D

H
10

32
33

7/
18

/2
02

5
D

el
ga

di
llo

St
ep

ha
ni

e
K.

R
D

H
10

32
34

7/
18

/2
02

5
Br

el
an

d
Si

er
ra

L.
R

D
H

10
32

35

7/
18

/2
02

5
D

eM
ar

co
C

he
ls

ea
E.

R
D

H
10

32
36

7/
18

/2
02

5
Ah

le
s

M
ak

en
a

A.
R

D
H

10
32

37

7/
18

/2
02

5
Fe

lto
n

C
la

ris
sa

L.
R

D
H

10
32

38

7/
18

/2
02

5
H

en
de

rs
on

Se
re

na
M

.
R

D
H

10
32

39

7/
18

/2
02

5
Ta

yl
or

Ja
m

ie
N

.
R

D
H

10
32

40

7/
18

/2
02

5
G

ig
an

ia
n

Pe
ga

h
R

D
H

10
32

41

7/
18

/2
02

5
W

ills
on

Br
itt

an
y

A.
R

D
H

10
32

42

8/
1/

20
25

N
ag

ra
Pr

ab
hj

ot
K.

R
D

H
10

32
43

8/
1/

20
25

Es
tra

da
El

iz
ab

et
h

R
D

H
10

32
44

8/
1/

20
25

Fe
rre

r
R

ob
in

 E
la

in
e

D
.

R
D

H
10

32
45

8/
1/

20
25

H
er

zo
g

Pa
ig

e
N

.
R

D
H

10
32

46

8/
1/

20
25

C
ha

ve
z 

Be
rri

o
Li

sa
nd

ra
R

D
H

10
32

47

8/
1/

20
25

M
en

de
nh

al
l

M
el

is
sa

M
.

R
D

H
10

32
48



D
at

e 
of

 L
ic

en
se

 A
pp

ro
va

l
La

st
 N

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e
M

I
Ti

tle
Li

ce
ns

e 
N

um
be

r

8/
1/

20
25

R
em

ig
io

Li
zz

al
in

R
D

H
10

32
49

8/
1/

20
25

Br
ac

am
on

te
s

Ita
lia

R
D

H
10

32
50

8/
1/

20
25

R
os

al
es

Br
en

da
E.

R
D

H
10

32
51

8/
1/

20
25

R
od

rig
ue

z 
G

ar
za

Ye
se

ni
a

R
D

H
10

32
52

8/
1/

20
25

M
ur

illo
 D

ia
z

N
el

ly
R

D
H

10
32

53

8/
1/

20
25

H
er

na
nd

ez
Br

ia
nn

a
R

D
H

10
32

54

8/
1/

20
25

Lo
cq

ui
ao

Pr
is

ci
lla

A.
R

D
H

10
32

55

8/
1/

20
25

M
ul

lin
s

H
an

na
N

.
R

D
H

10
32

56

8/
1/

20
25

Ar
re

gu
in

G
ia

nc
ar

lo
A.

R
D

H
10

32
57

9/
5/

20
25

H
eg

ne
Er

in
E.

R
D

H
10

32
58

9/
5/

20
25

W
al

l
Ve

rn
in

a
J.

R
D

H
10

32
59

9/
5/

20
25

R
am

os
As

hl
ey

L.
R

D
H

10
32

60

9/
5/

20
25

Tr
an

Va
le

ria
Y.

R
D

H
10

32
61

9/
5/

20
25

Pa
tte

rs
on

Sh
el

by
L.

R
D

H
10

32
62

9/
5/

20
25

Pe
nh

al
lu

ric
k

C
hr

is
tin

e
A.

R
D

H
10

32
63

9/
12

/2
02

5
H

ar
le

y
R

ac
ie

l A
nn

D
.

R
D

H
10

32
64

9/
12

/2
02

5
C

ho
i

H
yu

n 
O

k
R

D
H

10
32

65

9/
12

/2
02

5
D

re
sc

he
r

C
al

lie
L.

R
D

H
10

32
66

9/
12

/2
02

5
Ta

sa
ni

Sh
ay

na
M

.
R

D
H

10
32

67

9/
12

/2
02

5
R

iv
en

es
M

cK
en

a
R

.
R

D
H

10
32

68

9/
12

/2
02

5
Ba

rfi
el

d
Ka

yt
lin

J.
S.

R
D

H
10

32
69

9/
26

/2
02

5
W

illi
am

s
An

itr
a

N
.

R
D

H
10

32
70

9/
26

/2
02

5
M

oo
dy

Le
tic

ia
M

.
R

D
H

10
32

71

10
/1

0/
20

25
Ev

an
s

R
eg

en
e

R
D

H
10

32
72



D
at

e 
of

 L
ic

en
se

 A
pp

ro
va

l
La

st
 N

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e
M

I
Ti

tle
Li

ce
ns

e 
N

um
be

r

10
/1

0/
20

25
St

an
dl

ey
C

in
di

J.
R

D
H

10
32

73

10
/1

0/
20

25
Pr

ob
er

t
El

le
R

.
R

D
H

10
32

74

10
/1

0/
20

25
Ba

rb
ie

ri
Al

ex
is

G
.

R
D

H
10

32
75

10
/1

0/
20

25
Tr

ev
in

o
As

hl
ey

A.
R

D
H

10
32

76

10
/2

4/
20

25
H

w
an

g
Pa

ul
S.

R
D

H
10

32
77

10
/2

4/
20

25
C

ow
an

Av
er

y
J.

R
D

H
10

32
78

10
/2

4/
20

25
St

ar
lin

g
Ta

w
ne

e
B.

R
D

H
10

32
79

10
/2

4/
20

25
Sh

af
fe

r
R

eg
in

a
S.

R
D

H
10

32
80



 



Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
Re

po
rt 

- P
ro

gr
am

s I
ns

pe
cte

d 
| A

pp
ro

ve
d 

<4
5 D

ay
s

Ap
pr

ov
ed

Di
ag

no
sti

c a
nd

 Pr
ev

en
tiv

e C
ar

e
10

/1
/2

02
5

11
/5

/2
02

5

Pr
og

ra
m

 N
am

e |
 ID

Pr
og

ra
m

 St
at

us
Pr

og
ra

m
 Se

rv
ice

(s)
 C

at
eg

or
y

Pr
og

ra
m

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Ap
pr

ov
al 

Da
te

Pr
og

ra
m

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Co

m
pl

et
ion

 D
at

e

He
alt

hy
 A

th
let

es
 | 5

11
/6

/2
5,

 2
:5

9 
PM

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
R

ep
or

t -
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

In
sp

ec
te

d 
| A

pp
ro

ve
d 

<4
5 

D
ay

s

ht
tp

s:
//a

irt
ab

le
.c

om
/a

pp
U

1o
yD

O
gQ

L8
bv

ao
/tb

l2
m

G
od

hj
3c

Ku
Ye

o/
vi

w
Q

u6
BZ

iF
O

YF
M

1a
y?

bl
oc

ks
=h

id
e

1/
1



 



italics





1.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 3, for the purposes of NRS 

631.34583, “bona fide relationship” means a relationship between a patient and a licensee 

where the licensee has: 

 (a) Reviewed any available medical records of the patient, including, without limitation: 

  (1) Any relevant information concerning a current illness; and  

  (2) Any diagnostic or radiographic records obtained within the immediately preceding 6 

months; 



 (b) Performed an in-person examination of the patient’s oral cavity within the immediately 

preceding 6 months for the purposes of diagnosing, assessing or determining the current 

medical condition of the patient or reviewed the medical records of such an examination that 

was performed within the immediately preceding 6 months by another licensee; and 

 (c) A reasonable expectation that he or she will provide follow-up care and treatment to the 

patient. 

 2.  In lieu of the examinations and the review of medical records described in paragraphs 

(a) and (b) of subsection 1, a licensee who is establishing a bona fide relationship with a 

patient through teledentistry under the circumstances authorized by subsection 1 of NRS 

631.34583 may perform: 

 (a) If the patient is an adult, a consultation with the patient in which the licensee reviews 

the dental history of the patient before the licensee examines or treats the patient; or 

 (b) If the patient is a minor, a review of any notes made by a parent or guardian of the 

patient on the consent form for the patient before the licensee examines or treats the patient.  

 3.  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a bona fide relationship is not required 

to include the reasonable expectation of providing follow-up care and treatment to a patient as 

required by paragraph (c) of subsection 1 if the patient receives treatment in connection with a 

public health program. A dental hygienist who holds a special endorsement to practice public 

health dental hygiene shall refer a patient that receives services through teledentistry in 

connection with a public health program to a dentist in accordance with the requirements of 

subparagraph (2) of paragraph (b) of subsection 6 of NAC 631.210. 

1.  Subject to the provisions of subsection 3, a licensee may only provide the 

following services through teledentistry: 



 (a) Consultation and recommending treatment. 

 (b) Issuing a prescription that he or she deems necessary to treat an emergent need of the 

patient. 

 (c) Providing a limited diagnosis based on information provided by the patient during a 

visit conducted through teledentistry. 

 (d) Determining the need for orthodontic corrections to address identifiable problems 

related to the malposition of teeth. 

 (e) Correcting the position of teeth using orthodontic appliances. 

 2.  A licensee who provides services through teledentistry shall maintain a list of licensees 

to whom the licensee may refer a patient to receive services in person when necessary in 

accordance with subsection 2 of NRS 631.34585. 

 3.  A licensee shall not provide services through teledentistry if the licensee is not 

authorized to provide those services in person. 

 4.  A licensee who issues a prescription through teledentistry shall: 

 (a) Comply with the relevant provisions of chapter 639 of NAC; and  

 (b) Transmit the prescription by telephone or electronic transmission to the pharmacy 

designated by the patient. 

1.  In addition to the information required by NRS 631.34583, a licensee who is 

seeking informed consent pursuant to NRS 631.34583, must provide to the patient or his or 

her parent or guardian, as applicable: 

 (a) A copy of the license issued to the licensee by the Board; 

 (b) The contact information of the licensee and any other licensee providing services to the 

patient through teledentistry, which: 



  (1) May include, without limitation, the electronic mail address and telephone number 

of the licensee and the physical address of the office at which the licensee practices; and 

  (2) Must include information that may be used to contact the licensee in an emergency;  

 (c) A list of the services that the patient may receive through teledentistry and the cost of 

each service; and  

 (d) The actions that the licensee will take in an emergency, including, without limitation, 

the contact information for the medical facility to be used in the event of a medical emergency. 

 2.  Before providing services to a patient through teledentistry, a licensee shall obtain from 

the patient: 

 (a) A signed acknowledgment that the patient received the notice of privacy practices 

required by 45 C.F.R. § 164.520; 

 (b) The relevant medical history of the patient; and 

 (c) If applicable: 

  (1) Information concerning the policy of insurance covering the patient; and  

  (2) A financial agreement for the compensation of the licensee. 

 3.  As used in this section, “medical facility” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 

449.0151. 

1.  A licensee may use teledentistry to collaborate with a physician, physician 

assistant or advanced practice registered nurse, or the designees thereof, for the purposes of: 

 (a) Obtaining the relevant medical history of a patient; or 

 (b) Collaborating on the care of a patient. 

 2.  A licensee may use teledentistry to collaborate with a licensee who does not practice in 

the same specialty area for the purpose of: 



 (a) Obtaining the relevant medical history of a patient;  

 (b) Collaborating on the care of a patient; or 

 (c) Developing a plan for the treatment of a patient. 

 3.  When more than one licensee provides care to the same patient, any licensee who 

provides care to the patient through teledentistry shall: 

 (a) Obtain from the patient, to the extent that the patient is willing to provide such 

information, the names and contact information of the other licensees providing care to the 

patient; and 

 (b) If the patient provides information to the licensee pursuant to paragraph (a): 

  (1) Communicate with the other licensees concerning the relevant medical history and 

care of the patient; and 

  (2) Provide all relevant information and recommendations concerning the care of the 

patient to the other licensees. 

In addition to the requirements of NRS 631.3123, the written practice agreement 

required by NRS 631.3122 between an authorizing dentist and a dental therapist who has not 

completed the hours of clinical practice under the direct supervision of an authorizing dentist 

required by subsection 1 of NRS 631.3122 must include, without limitation: 

 1.  Procedures for the supervision of the dental therapist through teledentistry; or 

2.  A statement that all supervision of the dental therapist will occur in person. 

As used in sections 8 to 11, inclusive, of this regulation, unless the context 

otherwise requires, “special endorsement” means a special endorsement to administer 

immunizations issued pursuant to NRS 631.285.



1.  An application for a special endorsement must include, without limitation, 

copies of: 

 (a) The written policies and procedures for the handling and disposal of used or 

contaminated equipment required by paragraph (b) of subsection 1 NRS 631.2851; and 

 (b) The written plan for addressing emergencies required by paragraph (c) of subsection 1 

of NRS 631.2851. 

 2.  A course of training in the administration of immunizations completed by a dental 

therapist or dental hygienist to satisfy the requirements of NRS 631.285, must include at least 

20 hours of instruction.  

1.  In addition to complying with the requirements of NRS 631.2851, a dentist 

who holds a special endorsement and who administers immunizations, or under whose 

authorization a dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds such an endorsement 

administers immunizations, shall adopt written policies and procedures for the storage of 

immunizations. 

 2.  The written policies, procedures and plans adopted pursuant to this section and NRS 

631.2851, must comply with all applicable provisions of chapter 639 of NAC. 

1.  A dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special 

endorsement may only administer immunizations for influenza, COVID-19 and human 

papillomavirus. 

 2.  A dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special endorsement shall: 

 (a) Notify the primary care provider of the patient, if any, of each dose of an immunization 

that is administered to the patient.  



 (b) Maintain and update at least monthly a log of each immunization administered by the 

dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist, as applicable. 

 3.  A dentist who holds a special endorsement and who administers immunizations, or 

under whose authorization a dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special 

endorsement administers immunizations, shall ensure that the equipment that may be needed 

in an emergency is: 

 (a) Present at the physical location where an immunization is administered and 

immediately accessible, as required by paragraph (c) of subsection 1 of NRS 631.2851; and 

 (b) Inspected at least quarterly to ensure that the equipment remains functional. 

 4.  A dental hygienist or a dental therapist may not issue or obtain a standing order for the 

administration of an immunization.  

 5.  As used in this section, “COVID-19” means: 

 (a) The novel coronavirus identified as SARS-CoV-2; 

 (b) Any mutation of the novel coronavirus identified as SARS-CoV-2; or  

 (c) A disease or health condition caused by the novel coronavirus identified as SARS-CoV-

2. 

1.  A dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special endorsement must 

annually complete at least 3 hours of continuing education on the administration of 

immunizations and public health emergencies. 

 2.  The continuing education completed pursuant to subsection 1 may be used to satisfy 

the requirements of subsection 6 of NRS 631.342. 





 



 (e) Dentist who holds a special endorsement issued pursuant to NRS 631.285, shall submit 

a signed, written statement in substantially the following language for each biennium since 

his or her last renewal: 

 

 I, ............, hereby certify to the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada that I have 

obtained the continuing education required by subsection 6 of NRS 631.342, during the 

period July 1, ......, through and including June 30, .......... 

 Dated this ........ (day) of ....... (month) of ....... (year) 

 

                      

 ........................................... 

 Signature of Dentist 

 

 (f) Dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special endorsement issued pursuant to 

NRS 631.285, shall submit a signed, written statement in substantially the following language 

for each biennium since his or her last renewal: 

 

 I, ............, hereby certify to the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada that I have 

obtained the continuing education required by subsection 6 of NRS 631.342 and section 

11 of this regulation during the period July 1, ......, through and including June 30, 

.......... 

 Dated this ........ (day) of ....... (month) of ....... (year) 

 



                      

 ........................................... 

 Signature of Dental Hygienist or Dental Therapist 

 

 (g) Dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist who provides dental services through 

teledentistry shall attest that he or she possesses the policy of professional liability insurance 

required by NRS 631.34581. 



 





 

 

 (t) The failure of a dentist, dental therapist, dental hygienist or expanded function dental 

assistant to ensure that each medication or immunization in his or her control that is used in 

his or her practice is returned at the end of each day to a specified physical location that is 

safe and appropriate for the storage of the medication or immunization, as applicable. 





 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  6092-2509

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of these 
findings, they are for settlement purposes only
and are not to be further distributed or made 
public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On October 22, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in the 

above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s Response 

to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the complainant, and 

the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and recommendations.  “Records” as 

used in these findings and recommendations include any available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 

appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 



Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Joshua Branco, DMD 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Jana McIntyre, RDH
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Kevin Moore, DDS
    Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant, 

vs.  

Respondent.   
 

Case No. 4635-2438 

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of 
these findings, they are for settlement purposes 
only and are not to be further distributed or 
made public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On April 15, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 2

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in 

the above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s 

Response to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the 

complainant, and the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and 

recommendations.  “Records” as used in these findings and recommendations include any 

available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 



appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 

Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Ronald West, DMD 
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Yamilka Arias, RDH
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
   
 
  ___________________________________________
  Todd Thomspon, DMD
  Member, Review Panel
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  3716-2473

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of 
these findings, they are for settlement purposes 
only and are not to be further distributed or 
made public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On June 17, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 2

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in 

the above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s 

Response to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the 

complainant, and the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and 

recommendations.  “Records” as used in these findings and recommendations include any 

available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 



appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 

Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Ronald West, DMD 
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Yamilka Arias, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Todd Thomspon, DMD
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  S7-24-2479 

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of 
these findings, they are for settlement purposes 
only and are not to be further distributed or 
made public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On June 18, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 2

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in 

the above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s 

Response to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the 

complainant, and the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and 

recommendations.  “Records” as used in these findings and recommendations include any 

available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 



appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 

Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Ronald West, DMD 
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Yamilka Arias, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Todd Thomspon, DMD
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  7670-2489

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of 
these findings, they are for settlement purposes 
only and are not to be further distributed or 
made public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On June 17, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 2

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in 

the above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s 

Response to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the 

complainant, and the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and 

recommendations.  “Records” as used in these findings and recommendations include any 

available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 



appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 

Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Ronald West, DMD 
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Yamilka Arias, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Todd Thomspon, DMD
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  7670-2489

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of 
these findings, they are for settlement purposes 
only and are not to be further distributed or 
made public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On June 17, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 2

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in 

the above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s 

Response to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the 

complainant, and the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and 

recommendations.  “Records” as used in these findings and recommendations include any 

available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 



appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 

Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Ronald West, DMD 
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Yamilka Arias, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Todd Thomspon, DMD
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  5115-2500

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of 
these findings, they are for settlement purposes 
only and are not to be further distributed or 
made public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On June 17, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel 2

(“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in 

the above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s 

Response to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the 

complainant, and the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and 

recommendations.  “Records” as used in these findings and recommendations include any 

available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 



appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 

Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Ronald West, DMD 
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Yamilka Arias, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  Todd Thomspon, DMD
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

 

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  5559-2501

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of these 
findings, they are for settlement purposes only
and are not to be further distributed or made 
public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On October 16, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel Three 

(3) (“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in the 

above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s Response 

to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the complainant, and 

the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and recommendations.  “Records” as 

used in these findings and recommendations include any available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 

appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 



Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Lance Kim, DMD
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Kimberly Petrilla, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  John Gallob, DMD 
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



STATE OF NEVADA 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL 
EXAMINERS,

Complainant,  

vs.   

Respondent. 
 

Case No.  7372-2503

REVIEW PANEL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

 
(These findings are confidential pursuant to 
NRS 631.368(1). To the extent that Respondent 
and/or his or her attorney receive a copy of these 
findings, they are for settlement purposes only
and are not to be further distributed or made 
public except as provided in SB 256 NRS 
631.355(1), 631.3635 and/or NRS 631.368(2).)

 

On October 16, 2025, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners’ Review Panel Three 

(3) (“Review Panel”) met to review and discuss the preliminary investigation conducted by the 

Board’s Preliminary Screening Consultant assigned to this matter pursuant to NRS 631.363 in the 

above-captioned matter.  

The Review Panel reviewed and evaluated the Verified Complaint, Respondent’s Response 

to the Verified Complaint, records concerning the Respondent’s treatment of the complainant, and 

the Preliminary Screening Consultant’s preliminary findings and recommendations.  “Records” as 

used in these findings and recommendations include any available x-rays or radiographs.

Having reviewed and assessed the above-referenced materials, and following discussion 

regarding the same, the Review Panel finds and recommends as follows:

From the review of the records there is not a preponderance of evidence to support any 
allegation of treatment below the standard of care. Therefore, the Panel recommends 
remand with no further action. 

Having found as noted herein, this matter shall be returned to the Executive Director as 

appropriate based upon the findings herein for remand consistent with NRS Chapter 631, NAC 



Chapter 631 and/or any other applicable statutory or administrative provision applicable to the 

above-captioned matter.   

 DATED this ____________________________  

 By: ___________________________________________
  Lance Kim, DMD
    Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
 
 
  ___________________________________________
  Kimberly Petrilla, RDH 
  Member, Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
  
 
  ___________________________________________
  John Gallob, DMD 
  Member, Review Panel 
 
 



 



October 30, 2025

Daniel Streifel, DDS
4408 S Eastern Ave
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Re: NSBDE Case No. 3510-2342

Dear Dr. Streifel:

This correspondence regards the above captioned claim before the Nevada State Board of Medical 
Examiners (the Board), noticed to you on or about January 17, 2024. 

Pursuant to the Nevada Administrative Code (NAC), this claim has been reviewed by both a Preliminary 
Screening Consultant (PSC) and a Review Panel. The Review Panel voted to dismiss this claim and close 
this case number. Although this claim was ultimately dismissed because the Review Panel did not find 
by a preponderance of evidence that a violation of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) or the NAC 
occurred, the Review Panel expressed a concern that best practices may not have been followed. 
Specifically, the Review Panel felt it may be in your best interest: (1) not to market to or perform dental 
work on patients residing out of state so that follow-up needs can be better monitored and follow-up care 
more easily provided; (2) to have better oversight over the entire treatment plan and process, even if 
work is ultimately performed by colleague dentists in the same practice, so that you cannot be linked to 
another practitioner’s potentially subpar work; and (3) to reconsider patient refund policies to more 
expediently and wholly reimburse aggrieved patients. Going forward, please be mindful of these best 
practice tips. 

STATE OF NEVADAA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNNNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

JOE LOMBARDO
Governorrr

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZZ
Director, Dept. of B & Io

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAGG

MARCEL F. SCHAERERR
Deputy Directors, Dept. of B & I oso

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAMM
Executive Director, NSBDESB



Importantly, this Letter of Concern does not constitute a disciplinary action, and there is no ramification 
to your license status as a result of this letter being sent. You are also not on any kind of probation, and 
you do not have to complete any type of requirement to secure this case’s dismissal. The Board only 
wishes to place you on notice that best practices can help you avoid similar claims being made against 
you in the future.  
 
Keep in mind that, even though this matter is dismissed, you should be aware that the Board is not 
precluded from considering the events surrounding this matter if subsequent unrelated disciplinary 
claims are ever made. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the Board.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
  
 
Andrea Barraclough, Esq.  
General Counsel, NSBDE 
 
 
CC: Tyler Watson, Esq.  
       Schnitzer Johnson & Watson 
       8985 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 200 
       Las Vegas, NV 89123 



 



October 30, 2025

Thomas Ostler, DDS
4408 S Eastern Ave
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Re: NSBDE Case No. 3366-2028

Dear Dr. Ostler:

This correspondence regards the above captioned claim before the Nevada State Board of Medical 
Examiners (the Board), noticed to you on or about July 1, 2021. 

Pursuant to the Nevada Administrative Code (NAC), this claim has been reviewed by both a Preliminary 
Screening Consultant (PSC) and a Review Panel. The Review Panel voted to dismiss this claim and close 
this case number. Although this claim was ultimately dismissed because the Review Panel did not find 
by a preponderance of evidence that a violation of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) or the NAC 
occurred, the Review Panel expressed a concern that best practices may not have been followed. 
Specifically, the Review Panel felt it may be in your best interest: (1) to have better oversight over the 
entire treatment plan and put better thought into how implant and prosthodontic planning will affect 
future bite performance; and (2) to better document follow-up resolution of patient complaints. Going 
forward, please be mindful of these best practice tips. 

Importantly, this Letter of Concern does not constitute a disciplinary action, and there is no ramification 
to your license status as a result of this letter being sent. You are also not on any kind of probation, and 
you do not have to complete any type of requirement to secure this case’s dismissal. The Board only 

STATE OF NEVADAA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNNNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

JOE LOMBARDO
Governorrr

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZZ
Director, Dept. of B & Io

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAGG

MARCEL F. SCHAERERR
Deputy Directors, Dept. of B & I oso

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAMM
Executive Director, NSBDESB



wishes to place you on notice that these best practices can help you avoid similar claims being made 
against you in the future.  
 
Keep in mind that, even though this matter is dismissed, you should be aware that the Board is not 
precluded from considering the events surrounding this matter if subsequent unrelated disciplinary 
claims are ever made. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the Board.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
  
 
Andrea Barraclough, Esq.  
General Counsel, NSBDE 
 
 
CC: Adam Garth, Esq.  
       Quintairos, Prieto, Wood & Boyer, P.A. 
       2370 Corporate Circle, Suite 160 
       Henderson, NV 89074  
 
   
      
 



 



November 13, 2025

Michael Bell, DDS
8068 W Sahara Ave, Ste A
Las Vegas, NV 89117

Re: NSBDE Case No. 2486-1964

Dear Dr. Bell:

This correspondence regards the above captioned claim before the Nevada State Board of Medical 
Examiners (the Board), noticed to you on or about January 19, 2021. 

Pursuant to the Nevada Administrative Code (NAC), this claim has been reviewed by both a Preliminary 
Screening Consultant (PSC) and a Review Panel. The Review Panel voted to dismiss this claim and close 
this case number. Although this claim was ultimately dismissed because the Review Panel did not find 
by a preponderance of evidence that a violation of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) or the NAC 
occurred, the Review Panel expressed a concern that best practices may not have been followed. 
Specifically, the Review Panel felt it may be in your best interest to: (1) decline taking patients who are 
too old to best benefit from myofunctional therapy; and (2) consider future facial bone growth in youth 
patients when treatment planning. Going forward, please be mindful of these best practice tips. 

Importantly, this Letter of Concern does not constitute a disciplinary action, and there is no ramification 
to your license status as a result of this letter being sent. You are also not on any kind of probation, and 
you do not have to complete any type of requirement to secure this case’s dismissal. The Board only 

STATE OF NEVADAA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNNNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

JOE LOMBARDO
Governorrr

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZZ
Director, Dept. of B & Io

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAGG

MARCEL F. SCHAERERR
Deputy Directors, Dept. of B & I oso

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAMM
Executive Director, NSBDESB



wishes to place you on notice that these best practices can help you avoid similar claims being made 
against you in the future.  
 
Keep in mind that, even though this matter is dismissed, you should be aware that the Board is not 
precluded from considering the events surrounding this matter if subsequent unrelated disciplinary 
claims are ever made. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the Board.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
  
 
Andrea Barraclough, Esq.  
General Counsel, NSBDE 
 
 
  
 
   
      
 



 



October 30, 2025

Spencer Fullmer, DDS
4101 Caughlin Square, Suite 2
Reno, NV 89519

Re: NSBDE Case No. S7-78-2504

Dear Dr. Fullmer:

This correspondence regards the above captioned claim before the Nevada State Board of Medical 
Examiners (the Board), noticed to you on or about January 2, 2025. 

Pursuant to the Nevada Administrative Code (NAC), this claim has been reviewed by both a Preliminary 
Screening Consultant (PSC) and a Review Panel. The Review Panel voted to dismiss this claim and close 
this case number. Although this claim was ultimately dismissed because the Review Panel did not find 
by a preponderance of evidence that a violation of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) or the NAC 
occurred, the Review Panel expressed a concern that best practices may not have been followed. 
Specifically, while you did turn over all patient records to the patient as required by law, the Review 
Panel felt your patient records would have better served you if they were more detailed and signed-off 
on by you after transcribed by your staff.  Going forward, please be mindful of best practices related to 
recordkeeping.

Importantly, this Letter of Concern does not constitute a disciplinary action, and there is no ramification 
to your license status as a result of this letter being sent. You are also not on any kind of probation, and 
you do not have to complete any type of requirement to secure this case’s dismissal. The Board only 

STATE OF NEVADAA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNNNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

JOE LOMBARDO
Governorrr

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZZ
Director, Dept. of B & Io

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAGG

MARCEL F. SCHAERERR
Deputy Directors, Dept. of B & I oso

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAMM
Executive Director, NSBDESB



wishes to place you on notice that best practices can help you avoid similar claims being made against 
you in the future.  
 
Keep in mind that, even though this matter is dismissed, you should be aware that the Board is not 
precluded from considering the events surrounding this matter if subsequent unrelated disciplinary 
claims are ever made. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the Board.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
  
 
Andrea Barraclough, Esq.  
General Counsel, NSBDE 



 













 





 









 



 1 
 

N
ev

ad
a 

St
at

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

en
ta

l E
xa

m
in

er
s 

D
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

M
at

rix
 (e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

N
ov

em
be

r 1
2,

 2
02

5)
 

 I. 
C

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

 f
or

 D
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

R
ev

ie
w

:  
 

A
. 

U
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

m
at

rix
 b

y 
a 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

 (
PS

C
) s

ho
ul

d 
be

 fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

of
 v

io
la

tio
ns

 o
nl

y.
 P

SC
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e r
ec

om
m

en
di

ng
 a

ny
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
di

sc
ip

lin
e,

 b
ut

 th
ey

 sh
ou

ld
 c

on
sid

er
 a

dd
in

g 
th

e 
N

R
S 

or
 N

A
C

 ci
ta

tio
n 

to
 th

ei
r v

io
la

tio
n 

fin
di

ng
s t

o 
be

tte
r 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 P

an
el

 (R
P)

 a
nd

 B
oa

rd
 o

f w
hi

ch
 in

fra
ct

io
n 

th
ey

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 s

ite
.  

 
B

. 
A

 R
P 

an
d/

or
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 c
an

no
t c

on
sid

er
 a

 L
ic

en
se

e’
s 

pr
io

r d
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

hi
sto

ry
 a

s e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 a
 p

rio
r 

ba
d 

ac
t m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
th

an
 n

ot
 

to
 p

ro
ve

 th
e 

ex
ist

en
ce

 o
f a

 c
ur

re
nt

 b
ad

 a
ct

. I
n 

ot
he

r w
or

ds
, a

 p
er

so
n 

is 
no

t g
ui

lty
 o

f a
n 

ac
t n

ow
 ju

st 
be

ca
us

e 
th

ey
 p

re
vi

ou
sly

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 a

 sa
m

e 
or

 
sim

ila
r 

ac
t; 

to
 th

at
 e

nd
, p

rio
r d

isc
ip

lin
ar

y 
hi

sto
ry

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 d

ec
id

in
g 

fa
ct

ua
lly

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t b

re
ac

he
d 

th
e 

sta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e 

or
 n

ot
.  

 
C

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, a

 L
ic

en
se

e’
s 

pr
io

r 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
hi

sto
ry

 c
an

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

fte
r a

 fi
nd

in
g 

is 
m

ad
e 

th
at

 th
e 

sta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e 

w
as

 b
re

ac
he

d;
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
, i

t c
an

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s a
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 a
gg

ra
va

tin
g 

fa
ct

or
 to

 a
 p

re
su

m
pt

iv
e 

pe
na

lty
 w

he
n 

re
co

m
m

en
di

ng
 o

r d
ec

id
in

g 
di

sc
ip

lin
e.

 F
ac

to
rs

 
us

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 p
rio

r d
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

hi
sto

ry
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 a

n 
ag

gr
av

at
in

g 
fa

ct
or

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

rio
r d

isc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ev

en
ts;

 
 

Th
e 

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 se

rio
us

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 p

rio
r e

ve
nt

(s
); 

 
Si

m
ila

rit
ie

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
pr

io
r a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

ct
s 

of
 m

isc
on

du
ct

 s
ho

w
in

g 
a 

pa
tte

rn
; a

nd
 

 
A

ny
 d

isc
ip

lin
ar

y 
hi

sto
ry

 d
em

on
str

at
in

g 
an

 in
ab

ili
ty

 o
r u

nw
ill

in
gn

es
s 

to
 c

on
fo

rm
 to

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
’s 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 f
or

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
lic

en
su

re
. 

Fu
rth

er
, a

 n
ew

 a
ct

 o
f m

isc
on

du
ct

 th
at

 is
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 a

 p
rio

r a
ct

 o
f m

isc
on

du
ct

 m
ay

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
pe

na
lty

 fo
r t

he
 

cu
rre

nt
 v

io
la

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 p

ro
gr

es
siv

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
e.

 
 

D
. 

A
 m

iti
ga

tin
g 

fa
ct

or
 (

or
 m

iti
ga

to
r) 

is 
a 

ci
rc

um
sta

nc
e 

w
hi

ch
, i

f p
ro

ve
d 

by
 a

 p
re

po
nd

er
an

ce
 o

f e
vi

de
nc

e 
(th

at
 it

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

th
an

 n
ot

 
oc

cu
rre

d)
, p

re
se

nt
s 

a 
re

as
on

 w
hy

 a
 p

re
su

m
pt

iv
e 

di
sc

ip
lin

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
cr

ea
se

d.
 E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f m

iti
ga

tin
g 

fa
ct

or
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 



 2 
 

 
C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
’s 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

w
ith

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
de

sp
ite

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s; 

 
Pr

io
r s

ta
te

m
en

ts 
of

 p
at

ie
nt

 s
at

isf
ac

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

’s 
tre

at
m

en
ts;

 
 

Le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
pr

ac
tic

in
g 

(e
.g

., 
ne

w
er

 g
ra

du
at

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 m
ak

e 
ce

rta
in

 e
rro

rs
 th

an
 s

ea
so

ne
d 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

); 
 

Pr
ee

m
pt

iv
e 

at
te

m
pt

s 
by

 th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r 

to
 c

or
re

ct
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s 

(e
.g

., 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

 re
fu

nd
 w

ith
ou

t b
ei

ng
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
o 

so
, f

ix
ed

 th
e 

iss
ue

 
w

ith
ou

t c
ha

rg
in

g 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 f
or

 e
xt

ra
 ti

m
es

, e
tc

.) 
  

 
E.

 
A

n 
ag

gr
av

at
in

g 
fa

ct
or

 (o
r a

gg
ra

va
to

r) 
is 

a 
ci

rc
um

sta
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

, i
f p

ro
ve

d 
by

 a
 p

re
po

nd
er

an
ce

 o
f e

vi
de

nc
e 

(th
at

 it
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
th

an
 

no
t o

cc
ur

re
d)

, p
re

se
nt

s 
a 

re
as

on
 w

hy
 a

 p
re

su
m

pt
iv

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

 E
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f a
gg

ra
va

tin
g 

fa
ct

or
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 

 
R

ep
ea

t b
eh

av
io

rs
 o

r a
 p

at
te

rn
 o

f b
re

ac
hi

ng
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

sta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e;

 
 

A
ct

 w
as

 w
ill

fu
l o

r p
re

m
ed

ita
te

d 
as

 o
pp

os
ed

 to
 n

eg
lig

en
t o

r g
ro

ss
ly

 n
eg

lig
en

t; 
 

 
C

on
du

ct
 re

su
lts

 in
 c

rim
in

al
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

r s
um

m
ar

y 
su

sp
en

sio
n 

un
de

r t
he

 N
R

S 
or

 N
A

C
; 

 
Th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 w
as

 se
ve

re
ly

 o
r p

er
m

an
en

tly
 in

ju
re

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r’s

 a
ct

io
n(

s)
;  

 
Th

e 
ac

t w
as

 m
ot

iv
at

ed
 b

y 
or

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 e

le
m

en
ts 

of
 b

ia
s 

or
 p

re
ju

di
ce

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

’s 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
in

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
la

ss
 (

e.
g.

, r
ac

e,
 

ge
nd

er
, e

th
ni

ci
ty

, r
el

ig
io

n,
 s

ex
ua

l o
rie

nt
at

io
n/

id
en

tit
y,

 e
tc

.) 
 

Th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r’s

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pa
tie

nt
’s 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

w
as

 d
ism

iss
iv

e,
 a

bu
siv

e,
 o

r o
bs

ce
ne

; a
nd

 
 

Th
e 

pa
tie

nt
’s 

ne
ed

 fo
r o

ut
sid

e 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l m

ed
ic

al
 o

r d
en

ta
l t

re
at

m
en

ts 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
al

le
ge

d 
br

ea
ch

 o
f s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e.

 
 F.

 
A

 p
re

su
m

pt
iv

e 
pe

na
lty

 is
 th

e 
pr

es
cr

ib
ed

 p
en

al
ty

 fo
r a

 c
er

ta
in

 L
ic

en
se

e 
ac

tio
n 

w
he

re
 th

e 
R

P 
or

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 d

o 
no

t f
in

d 
th

at
 a

ny
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
m

iti
ga

to
r 

or
 a

gg
ra

va
to

r 
ap

pl
ie

s 
by

 a
t l

ea
st 

a 
pr

ep
on

de
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

vi
de

nc
e.

   
 

G
. 

A
 p

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 c

an
 b

e 
pr

ov
en

 to
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 m

ul
tip

le
 i

ns
ta

nc
es

 o
f m

isc
on

du
ct

 w
hi

ch
 e

ith
er

 o
r b

ot
h 

sp
an

 se
ve

ra
l d

iff
er

en
t 

m
isc

on
du

ct
 ty

pe
s 

(m
ea

ni
ng

 th
ey

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
in

fra
ct

io
ns

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 d

iff
er

en
t c

ha
rt 

su
bs

ec
tio

ns
) 

or
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

te
m

pl
at

e 
m

ul
tip

le
 h

ea
de

rs
 in

 g
iv

en
 

m
isc

on
du

ct
 ty

pe
 (m

ea
ni

ng
 th

ey
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 in

fra
ct

io
n 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

ch
ar

t s
ub

se
ct

io
n)

. I
f t

hi
s 

oc
cu

rs
, s

ev
er

al
 o

f t
he

 
pe

na
lti

es
 c

ou
ld

 o
ve

rla
p.

 A
 R

P 
or

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 c

an
 c

ho
os

e 
w

he
th

er
 to

 m
ak

e 
a 

pu
ni

tiv
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

ru
n 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
r c

on
se

cu
tiv

el
y.

  
 E

xa
m

pl
e 

1 
– 

A
ll 

in
fr

ac
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ch

ar
t: 

 
(F

or
 th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 th

is 
m

at
rix

, a
 “

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r”

 i
s 

de
fin

ed
 a

s a
 d

en
tis

t, 
sp

ec
ia

lty
 d

en
tis

t, 
de

nt
al

 h
yg

ie
ni

st,
 d

en
ta

l t
he

ra
pi

st,
 o

r e
xp

an
de

d 
fu

nc
tio

n 
de

nt
al

 a
ss

ist
an

t.)
 

 



 3 
 Pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
pl

ac
ed

 a
 p

at
ie

nt
 u

nd
er

 m
od

er
at

e 
se

da
tio

n 
an

d 
th

en
 le

ft 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 f
or

 a
bo

ut
 1

0 
m

in
ut

es
 to

 c
he

ck
 o

n 
an

ot
he

r p
at

ie
nt

. T
he

y 
le

ft 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 in
 th

e 
ca

re
 o

f t
he

 re
ce

pt
io

ni
st,

 w
ho

 d
oe

s n
ot

 k
no

w
 C

PR
. T

he
y 

di
d 

no
t m

on
ito

r t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ith

 a
 p

ul
se

 o
xi

m
et

er
 w

hi
le

 s
ed

at
ed

.  
 Th

e 
pr

es
um

pt
iv

e 
pe

na
lty

 fo
r e

ac
h 

is 
8 

ho
ur

s o
f a

ne
sth

es
ia

 r
el

at
ed

 C
E.

 T
he

 P
SC

, R
P,

 o
r t

he
 B

oa
rd

 c
ou

ld
 c

ho
os

e 
to

 im
po

se
 th

e 
8 

+ 
8 

+ 
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E 

(o
r 2

4 
ho

ur
s)

 a
nd

 ru
n 

th
em

 a
ll 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
ly

, s
uc

h 
th

at
 o

nl
y 

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 C
E 

w
ou

ld
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
be

 re
qu

ire
d.

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y,
 

if 
ag

gr
av

at
or

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

t, 
th

e 
PS

C
, R

P,
 o

r t
he

 B
oa

rd
 c

an
 c

on
se

cu
tiv

el
y 

ru
n 

al
l h

ou
rs

, r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 a
ll 

24
 h

ou
rs

 (8
+8

+8
) o

f a
ne

sth
es

ia
 C

E 
be

in
g 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
 E

xa
m

pl
e 

2 
–I

nf
ra

ct
io

ns
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 d
iff

er
en

t c
ha

rt
s:

  
 Pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
m

et
 w

ith
 a

 n
ew

 p
at

ie
nt

 re
fe

rre
d 

to
 h

im
 b

y 
a 

de
nt

ist
 fr

ie
nd

. T
he

 re
ce

pt
io

ni
st 

at
 th

e 
de

nt
ist

 f
rie

nd
’s 

pr
ac

tic
e 

to
ld

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

’s 
as

sis
ta

nt
 th

at
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 n
ee

de
d 

an
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
of

 to
ot

h 
#3

. P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 d
id

 n
ot

 p
er

fo
rm

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
x-

ra
ys

, n
or

 re
vi

ew
 a

ny
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 c
lin

ic
al

 
re

co
rd

s. 
Si

nc
e 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 c
om

pl
ai

ni
ng

 o
f r

ig
ht

-s
id

ed
 m

ou
th

 p
ai

n,
 P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
of

 to
ot

h 
#3

. T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 
re

tu
rn

ed
 in

 tw
o 

w
ee

ks
 w

ith
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
th

at
 th

e 
pa

in
 h

ad
 n

ot
 su

bs
id

ed
. T

hi
s t

im
e,

 r
ad

io
gr

ap
hs

 w
er

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
, a

nd
 it

 w
as

 re
ve

al
ed

 th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 

ha
d 

a 
cr

ac
k 

in
 to

ot
h 

#3
1.

 A
 c

al
l t

o 
th

e 
de

nt
ist

 f
rie

nd
’s 

pr
ac

tic
e 

re
ve

al
ed

 th
at

 h
er

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 a

 b
re

ak
do

w
n 

in
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
or

 a
 ty

po
gr

ap
hi

ca
l 

er
ro

r s
om

ew
he

re
, a

s t
he

 to
ot

h 
m

ea
nt

 to
 b

e 
ex

tra
ct

ed
 w

as
 to

ot
h 

#3
0.

 F
ur

th
er

, a
 fr

ag
m

en
t o

f t
oo

th
 #

3 
w

as
 a

lso
 sh

ow
s a

s r
em

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ra

di
og

ra
ph

s. 
B

el
ie

vi
ng

 th
at

 th
es

e 
er

ro
rs

 w
er

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 re

su
lt 

in
 so

m
e 

ki
nd

 o
f p

at
ie

nt
 le

ga
l a

ct
io

n,
 th

e 
de

nt
ist

 a
lte

re
d 

pa
tie

nt
 re

co
rd

s 
to

 sa
y 

th
at

 
cr

ac
ks

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
fo

un
d 

in
 b

ot
h 

to
ot

h 
#3

 a
nd

 to
ot

h 
#3

0,
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
tre

at
m

en
t 

pl
an

 w
as

 to
 re

m
ov

e 
to

ot
h 

#3
 fi

rs
t a

nd
 to

ot
h 

#3
0 

la
te

r. 
M

ea
nw

hi
le

, 
th

e 
de

nt
ist

 d
id

 n
ot

 d
isc

lo
se

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 f

ra
gm

en
t o

f t
oo

th
 #

3 
to

 th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 d

ur
in

g 
th

ei
r e

xa
m

. W
he

n 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 re
al

iz
ed

 th
e 

er
ro

r 
of

 th
e 

w
ro

ng
 

to
ot

h 
be

in
g 

ex
tra

ct
ed

, h
e 

so
ug

ht
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 h
is 

re
co

rd
s 

fro
m

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

’s 
cl

in
ic

. T
o 

sta
ll 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

m
al

pr
ac

tic
e 

sta
tu

te
 o

f l
im

ita
tio

ns
 

co
ul

d 
ru

n,
 P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
’s 

of
fic

e 
co

ns
ist

en
tly

 r
ef

us
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 c
op

ie
s 

of
 th

ei
r 

de
nt

al
 re

co
rd

s. 
Th

es
e 

ar
e 

al
l f

irs
t o

ffe
ns

es
 fo

r t
hi

s 
Pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r. 
   

  
 Pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 v
io

la
tio

ns
 in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

at
ric

es
: 

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l C

om
pe

te
nc

e 
Er

ro
r/M

al
pr

ac
tic

e;
 P

at
ie

nt
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 o

r I
ss

ue
s; 

an
d 

C
le

ric
al

/R
ec

or
d 

K
ee

pi
ng

/D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Er

ro
rs

 o
r A

ct
io

ns
.  

 Fo
r v

io
la

tin
g 

N
R

S 
63

1.
34

75
(2

) (
m

isd
ia

gn
os

is/
tre

at
m

en
t 

of
 w

ro
ng

 c
on

di
tio

n)
, t

he
 p

re
su

m
pt

iv
e 

pe
na

lty
 is

 6
-1

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 d

ia
gn

os
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
C

E.
 B

ec
au

se
 th

is 
w

as
 a

 fi
rs

t o
ffe

ns
e 

bu
t f

ai
rly

 e
gr

eg
io

us
, t

he
 re

vi
ew

er
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

12
 h

ou
rs

 o
f d

ia
gn

os
in

g 
C

E 
an

d 
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
C

E 
fo

r p
ul

lin
g 

th
e 

w
ro

ng
 to

ot
h,

 6
 h

ou
rs

 o
f d

ia
gn

os
in

g 
C

E 
an

d 
6 

ho
ur

s o
f r

ad
io

gr
ap

hi
c 

C
E 

fo
r n

ot
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 
im

ag
in

g 
be

fo
re

 p
ul

lin
g 

th
e 

to
ot

h,
 a

nd
 6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f d
ia

gn
os

in
g 

C
E 

an
d 

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

C
E 

fo
r r

el
yi

ng
 o

n 
hi

sto
ric

al
 d

oc
um

en
ts 

al
on

e 



 4 
 w

ith
ou

t p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

an
 e

xa
m

. T
he

 re
vi

ew
er

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

ch
os

en
 to

 ru
n 

th
is 

al
l c

on
se

cu
tiv

el
y,

 b
ut

 b
ec

au
se

 th
ey

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
at

rix
 c

ha
rt 

an
d 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 a

gg
ra

va
to

rs
 f

ou
nd

, t
he

 re
vi

ew
er

 c
ho

se
 to

 ru
n 

th
em

 c
on

cu
rre

nt
ly

, s
uc

h 
th

at
 th

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

 h
ad

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

12
 h

ou
rs

 o
f d

ia
gn

os
is 

C
E 

(th
e 

tw
o 

6 
ho

ur
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts 
w

er
e 

su
bs

um
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

12
), 

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 C
E,

 a
nd

 6
 h

ou
rs

 o
f r

ad
io

gr
ap

hi
c 

C
E.

   
 Fo

r v
io

la
tin

g 
N

R
S 

63
1.

34
75

(1
3)

 (f
ai

lu
re

 to
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
e 

a 
pa

tie
nt

 in
 d

ec
isi

on
s 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 th

ei
r t

re
at

m
en

t),
 t

he
 p

re
su

m
pt

iv
e 

pe
na

lty
 is

 3
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

an
d 

3 
ho

ur
s o

f t
re

at
m

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

C
E.

 F
or

 v
io

la
tin

g 
N

R
S 

63
1.

34
85

(1
)(d

) (
fa

ilu
re

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

re
co

rd
s 

of
 a

 p
at

ie
nt

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
an

d 
co

py
in

g 
to

 th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 o

r t
he

ir 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e)

, 
th

e 
pr

es
um

pt
iv

e 
pe

na
lty

 is
 3

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

an
d 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 H

IP
A

A
 C

E.
 S

in
ce

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

at
rix

 c
ha

rt,
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

er
 a

ga
in

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

ru
n 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
el

y 
bu

t c
ho

se
 to

 
ru

n 
th

em
 c

on
cu

rre
nt

ly
, s

uc
h 

th
at

 th
e 

re
sp

on
de

nt
 h

ad
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
3 

ho
ur

s o
f e

th
ic

s 
C

E
, 3

 h
ou

rs
 o

f t
re

at
m

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

C
E,

 a
nd

 3
 h

ou
rs

 o
f H

IP
A

A
 

C
E.

   
 Fo

r v
io

la
tin

g 
N

A
C

 6
31

.2
30

(1
)(a

) (
in

te
nt

io
na

l 
fa

lsi
fic

at
io

n 
of

 re
co

rd
s)

, t
he

 re
vi

ew
er

 c
ho

se
 th

e 
pr

es
um

pt
iv

e 
pe

na
lty

 b
ec

au
se

 th
ey

 fo
un

d 
no

 
ag

gr
av

at
or

s. 
Th

us
, 8

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E,

 8
 h

ou
rs

 o
f r

ec
or

dk
ee

pi
ng

 C
E,

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
nt

al
 ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

 w
er

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d.

  
 G

iv
en

 v
io

la
tio

ns
 e

xi
st 

in
 th

re
e 

of
 th

e 
m

at
rix

 c
ha

rts
, t

he
 re

vi
ew

er
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

pu
ni

sh
m

en
t o

f 1
2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 d
ia

gn
os

in
g 

C
E,

 6
 h

ou
rs

 o
f t

re
at

m
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 C

E,
 6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f r
ad

io
gr

ap
hi

c 
C

E,
 3

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E,

 3
 m

or
e 

ho
ur

s 
of

 tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
C

E,
 3

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
H

IP
A

A
 C

E,
 a

no
th

er
 8

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E,

 8
 h

ou
rs

 o
f r

ec
or

dk
ee

pi
ng

 C
E,

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
nt

al
 ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

. I
ns

te
ad

, t
he

 re
vi

ew
er

 o
pt

ed
 fo

r 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

 p
un

ish
m

en
ts,

 s
uc

h 
th

at
 th

e 
fin

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts 

w
er

e 
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f d
ia

gn
os

in
g 

C
E,

 6
 h

ou
rs

 o
f t

re
at

m
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
C

E,
 6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
ra

di
og

ra
ph

ic
 C

E,
 3

 h
ou

rs
 o

f H
IP

A
A

 C
E,

 8
 h

ou
rs

 o
f e

th
ic

s 
C

E,
 8

 h
ou

rs
 o

f r
ec

or
dk

ee
pi

ng
 C

E,
 a

nd
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
.  

  
 

H
.  

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
e 

pr
es

um
pt

iv
e,

 m
iti

ga
te

d,
 a

nd
 a

gg
ra

va
te

d 
pe

na
lti

es
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 th
us

 fi
nd

in
g 

th
em

 
to

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 r

an
ge

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

fra
ct

io
ns

 d
et

ai
le

d.
 T

o 
th

at
 e

nd
, a

 R
P 

or
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 s
ho

ul
d 

str
iv

e 
to

 s
tri

ct
ly

 u
til

iz
e 

th
es

e 
ra

ng
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

de
ci

sio
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
co

ns
ist

en
tly

, 
ob

je
ct

iv
el

y,
 a

nd
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
cl

ea
rly

 u
nd

er
sto

od
 c

rit
er

ia
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, i
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t a
 R

P 
or

 B
oa

rd
 fi

nd
 

th
e 

fa
ct

s 
of

 a
 c

as
e 

w
ar

ra
nt

 m
or

e,
 l

es
s, 

or
 d

iff
er

en
t 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts,

 a
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
fro

m
 t

he
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
en

tit
y 

ca
n 

co
ns

ul
t 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 G

en
er

al
 C

ou
ns

el
 a

nd
 se

ek
 a

n 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

to
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 m
at

rix
. A

ny
 ex

ce
pt

io
n,

 th
ro

ug
h 

sig
ne

d 
of

f b
y 

th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

as
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

be
st 

in
te

re
sts

 o
f t

he
 N

SB
D

E 
an

d 
sig

ne
d 

of
f b

y 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 C

ou
ns

el
 a

s 
le

ga
lly

 ju
sti

fia
bl

e/
de

fe
ns

ib
le

, 
m

us
t u

lti
m

at
el

y 
be

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
.  

 I. 
N

ot
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

m
at

te
rs

 w
he

re
 th

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 P

an
el

 a
nd

 B
oa

rd
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
fin

d 
a 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
of

 la
w

 a
nd

/o
r 

a 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
y 

m
us

t 
be

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
’s 

D
at

a 
B

an
k 

(N
PD

B
), 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
an

el
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

llo
w

ed
 to

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
 a

w
ay

 d
isc

lo
su

re
 t

o 
th

e 
N

PD
B.

 



 5 
 H

ow
ev

er
, e

ve
n 

th
ou

gh
 fe

de
ra

l l
aw

 re
qu

ire
s 

N
PD

B
 d

isc
lo

su
re

, 
no

 re
gu

la
tio

n 
or

 s
ta

tu
te

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 to
 p

ub
lis

h 
th

e 
id

en
tit

y 
of

 a
 d

isc
ip

lin
ed

 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
on

 it
s b

oa
rd

 w
eb

sit
e.

 T
hu

s, 
R

ev
ie

w
 P

an
el

s c
an

 el
ec

t t
o 

of
fe

r a
s a

 se
ttl

em
en

t t
er

m
 “

no
n-

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

’s 
w

eb
sit

e.
” 

(In
di

vi
du

al
 

B
oa

rd
’s 

m
ay

, a
nd

 th
is 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 e

le
ct

ed
 to

, p
os

t o
n 

its
 w

eb
sit

e 
a 

lis
t o

f d
isc

ip
lin

ed
 R

es
po

nd
en

ts.
 T

hi
s s

et
tle

m
en

t t
er

m
 w

ill
 n

ot
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

di
sc

ip
lin

e 
fro

m
 b

ei
ng

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
N

PD
B

 b
ut

 w
ill

 a
t l

ea
st 

ke
ep

 th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r’s

 n
am

e 
fro

m
 b

ei
ng

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
on

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
’s 

w
eb

sit
e.

) 
  T

he
 b

el
ow

 m
at

rix
 

do
es

 n
ot

 p
re

sc
rib

e 
w

he
n 

a 
ca

se
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 f

or
 n

on
-p

ub
lic

at
io

n,
 b

ut
 g

en
er

al
ly

, w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
iti

ga
to

rs
 p

re
se

nt
, w

he
re

 p
re

su
m

pt
iv

e 
pe

na
lti

es
 a

pp
ly

 b
ut

 fo
r a

 fi
rs

t o
ffe

ns
e,

 o
r w

he
re

 th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r 

is 
a 

m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

 g
ra

du
at

e/
lic

en
se

e 
as

 o
pp

os
ed

 to
 a

 m
or

e 
se

as
on

ed
 p

ra
ct

iti
on

er
, t

he
 

re
vi

ew
er

(s
) 

co
ul

d 
ju

sti
fia

bl
y 

ch
oo

se
 to

 o
ffe

r n
on

-p
ub

lic
at

io
n.

 T
ha

t s
ai

d,
 c

ho
os

in
g 

no
n-

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

is 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

at
 th

e 
di

sc
re

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
R

P 
an

d/
or

 
B

oa
rd

, w
ho

 sh
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ul
tim

at
e 

de
ci

sio
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

in
fra

ct
io

n 
is 

a 
th

re
at

 to
 p

ub
lic

 s
af

et
y 

su
ch

 th
at

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
’s 

rig
ht

 to
 k

no
w

 o
f 

th
e 

di
sc

ip
lin

e 
tru

m
ps

 th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r’s

 p
riv

ac
y 

in
te

re
sts

. 
 J. 

W
he

re
 th

e 
fa

ct
s 

of
 a

 c
as

e 
be

in
g 

re
vi

ew
ed

 re
ve

al
 n

o 
vi

ol
at

io
ns

 o
f a

ct
ua

l l
aw

, a
nd

/o
r t

he
re

 is
 n

ot
 q

ui
te

 a
 p

re
po

nd
er

an
ce

 o
f e

vi
de

nc
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
a 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

y 
oc

cu
rre

d,
 b

ut
 th

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 P

an
el

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
be

st 
pr

ac
tic

es
 m

ig
ht

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
be

en
 fo

llo
w

ed
 o

r s
om

e 
ot

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

he
lp

ed
 a

vo
id

 th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
, 

th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
an

el
 c

an
 d

ec
id

e 
th

e 
ca

se
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
es

ol
ve

d 
by

 a
 “

re
m

an
d 

fo
r 

di
sm

iss
al

 w
ith

 a
 L

et
te

r 
of

 
C

on
ce

rn
. A

 L
et

te
r 

of
 C

on
ce

rn
 d

oe
s 

no
t c

on
sti

tu
te

 a
 d

isc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ac

tio
n,

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is 

no
 ra

m
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t’s

 li
ce

ns
e 

sta
tu

s 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
le

tte
r. 

In
ste

ad
, 

th
e 

Le
tte

r 
of

 C
on

ce
rn

 a
cq

ua
in

ts 
th

e 
R

es
po

nd
en

t w
ith

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
tip

s 
or

 o
th

er
 s

ug
ge

sti
on

s 
to

 a
vo

id
 f

ut
ur

e 
or

 r
ep

ea
t 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s. 

To
 v

al
id

ly
 is

su
e 

a 
Le

tte
r 

of
 C

on
ce

rn
 w

ith
ou

t o
ffe

nd
in

g 
sta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
hi

bi
tio

ns
 a

ga
in

st 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

pr
im

an
ds

, a
 L

et
te

r o
f C

on
ce

rn
 c

an
no

t 
co

nt
ai

n 
an

y 
in

fe
re

nc
e 

of
 p

ro
ba

tio
n;

 th
is 

m
ea

ns
 th

e 
Le

tte
r o

f C
on

ce
rn

 c
an

no
t r

eq
ui

re
 o

r d
em

an
d 

a 
R

es
po

nd
en

t t
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

y 
so

rt 
of

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ak
in

g 
th

em
 p

ay
 a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

fe
es

 o
r 

re
im

bu
rs

in
g 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
) 

as
 a

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 d
ism

iss
al

. 
If 

th
is 

op
tio

n 
is 

se
le

ct
ed

, 
th

e 
ca

se
 is

 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

di
sm

iss
ed

.  
 

  
II.

 
Ty

pe
s o

f M
isc

on
du

ct
 a

nd
 E

sta
bl

ish
ed

 D
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

R
es

ul
ts 

 (s
ee

 e
ac

h 
ty

pe
 in

 c
ha

rt 
fro

m
 b

el
ow

) 
   [re

st 
of

 p
ag

e 
in

te
nt

io
na

lly
 b

la
nk

] 
  



 6 
  

A
. 

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l C

om
pe

te
nc

e 
Er

ro
rs

/M
al

pr
ac

tic
e/

M
is

co
nd

uc
t 

 
 

M
IS

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 

PR
E

SU
M

PT
IV

E
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
A

G
G

R
IV

AT
O

R
S 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
M

IT
IG

AT
O

R
S 

D
em

on
str

at
in

g 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l 
in

co
m

pe
te

nc
e 

(N
RS

 
63

1.
34

75
)(1

)  o
r (

2)
) 

 
 

M
isd

ia
gn

os
is/

tre
at

m
en

t 
of

 
w

ro
ng

 
co

nd
iti

on
 

(ra
di

ol
og

y 
is 

no
t 

pr
ov

ed
 to

 b
e 

an
 is

su
e)

 
   

 
M

isd
ia

gn
os

is/
tre

at
m

en
t 

of
 

w
ro

ng
 

co
nd

iti
on

 
ba

se
d 

on
 

in
ac

cu
ra

te
 

re
ad

in
g 

of
 

im
ag

in
g/

ra
di

og
ra

ph
s 

or
 

no
t 

ta
ki

ng
 a

ny
 c

ur
re

nt
 

im
ag

in
g/

ra
di

og
ra

ph
s 

 
 

Fa
ilu

re
 

to
 

ev
al

ua
te

 
a 

pa
tie

nt
, 

re
nd

er
in

g 
a 

di
ag

no
sis

 
on

ly
 

on
 

hi
sto

ric
al

 r
ec

or
ds

 w
ith

 
no

 n
ew

 e
xa

m
 

(*
Th

is 
in

cl
ud

es
 

fa
ili

ng
 

to
 

pr
op

er
ly

 
ev

al
ua

te
 

a 

(s
ee

 
be

lo
w

 
fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
  6-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
di

ag
no

sin
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

tre
at

m
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 C

E  
   6-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
di

ag
no

sin
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

ra
di

og
ra

ph
/im

ag
in

g 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

C
E 

   6-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

di
ag

no
sin

g 
C

E 
+ 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
tre

at
m

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 C
E 

   

(s
ee

 
be

lo
w

 
fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
  8-

24
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
di

ag
no

sin
g 

C
E  

+ 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 

ex
am

 
+ 

4-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f t
re

at
m

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 C
E  

  8-
24

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

di
ag

no
sin

g 
C

E 
+ 

de
nt

al
 j

ur
isp

ru
de

nc
e 

ex
am

 +
 4

-1
2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
ra

di
og

ra
ph

/im
ag

in
g 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
C

E 
  8-

24
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
di

ag
no

sin
g 

C
E 

+ 
de

nt
al

 j
ur

isp
ru

de
nc

e 
ex

am
 +

 4
-1

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

tre
at

m
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
C

E 
  

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
  2-

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

di
ag

no
sin

g 
C

E 
+ 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 C

E 
   2-

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

di
ag

no
sin

g 
C

E 
+ 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
ra

di
og

ra
ph

/im
ag

in
g 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
C

E 
   2-

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

di
ag

no
sin

g 
C

E 
+ 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 C

E  
   



 7 
 

pa
tie

nt
’s 

m
ed

ic
al

 
hi

sto
ry

 
of

 
sy

ste
m

ic
 

co
nd

iti
on

 
be

fo
re

 
to

 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

 to
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

. 
 

 
Im

pr
op

er
 

tre
at

m
en

t/t
ria

gi
ng

 
de

nt
al

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

    
 

Im
pr

op
er

ly
 

sp
ac

ed
/p

la
ce

d /
se

at
ed

/ 
m

ad
e 

cr
ow

ns
 

    
 

Im
pr

op
er

ly
 

sp
ac

ed
, 

pl
ac

ed
, m

ad
e,

 o
r s

ea
te

d 
br

id
ge

s 
an

d/
or

 d
en

tu
re

s 
(c

au
sin

g 
sh

or
t m

ar
gi

ns
, 

m
al

oc
cl

us
io

ns
, p

oo
r f

it,
 

et
c.

) 

 
 

Im
pr

op
er

ly
 

ex
tra

ct
in

g 
te

et
h 

(e
.g

. l
ea

vi
ng

 r
oo

t 

      4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s -
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
tre

at
m

en
t  

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 

de
nt

al
 e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s 

  4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s -
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
fix

ed
 c

ro
w

n 
pr

ep
 a

nd
 

de
sig

n 
in

cl
. p

os
t a

nd
 

co
re

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
  

  4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s -
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
pr

os
th

od
on

tic
s  

     4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 
C

E 
re

: 

      10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: t

re
at

m
en

t a
nd

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 d
en

ta
l 

em
er

ge
nc

ie
s  

   10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: 

fix
ed

 c
ro

w
n 

pr
ep

 
an

d 
de

sig
n 

in
cl

. 
po

st 
an

d 
co

re
 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 

  10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
pr

os
th

od
on

tic
s  

     10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
(ty

pe
 

of
 

      2-
4 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 C

E 
re

: t
re

at
m

en
t 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
de

nt
al

 e
m

er
ge

nc
ie

s 
   2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: f

ix
ed

 
cr

ow
n 

pr
ep

 a
nd

 
de

sig
n 

in
cl

. p
os

t a
nd

 
co

re
 te

ch
ni

qu
es

 
  2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: 

pr
os

th
od

on
tic

s 
     2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: (

ty
pe

 o
f 



 8 
 

or
 

fra
gm

en
t, 

no
t 

sto
pp

in
g 

un
ex

pe
ct

ed
ly

 
co

m
pl

ex
 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
to

 
of

fe
r 

m
or

e 
pa

tie
nt

 
ad

vi
ce

/sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
re

fe
rra

l, 
no

t p
ac

ki
ng

 o
r 

cl
os

in
g 

co
rre

ct
ly

, e
tc

.) 
 

 
 

Im
pr

op
er

ly
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
ro

ot
 

ca
na

l; 
im

pr
op

er
 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 

an
d 

tre
at

m
en

t 
of

 
ca

na
ls

 
(e

.g
. 

m
id

dl
e 

m
es

ia
l, 

m
es

io
bu

cc
al

 
an

d 
m

es
io

lin
gu

al
) 

 
 

 
Im

pr
op

er
ly

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

fil
lin

gs
/im

pr
op

er
 

bo
nd

in
g 

    
 

 
Im

pr
op

er
ly

 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
im

pl
an

ts 
  

(ty
pe

 
of

 
[m

ol
ar

, 
ca

ni
ne

, 
in

ci
so

r, 
w

isd
om

, 
et

c.
] 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
, 

ha
lf 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 m

us
t h

av
e l

iv
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 

+ 
4-

5 
ho

ur
s 

or
al

 
su

rg
er

y 
C

E 
 4-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 

C
E 

re
: 

en
do

do
nt

ic
s 

     4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
fil

lin
g 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d/
or

 
co

m
po

sit
e 

re
sto

ra
tio

ns
  

 4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

in
-

pe
rs

on
, h

an
ds

-o
n 

CE
 

re
: 

im
pl

an
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
, 

an
d 

[m
ol

ar
, 

ca
ni

ne
, 

in
ci

so
r, 

w
isd

om
, 

et
c.

] 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

, 
ha

lf 
of

 
w

hi
ch

 m
us

t 
ha

ve
 l

iv
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 +

 6
-8

 h
ou

rs
 

or
al

 s
ur

ge
ry

 C
E  

   10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: e

nd
od

on
tic

s 
      10

-4
0 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 

C
E 

re
: 

fil
lin

g 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d/

or
 

co
m

po
sit

e 
re

sto
ra

tio
ns

 
  10

-4
0 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
in

-
pe

rs
on

, h
an

ds
-o

n 
C

E 
re

: 
im

pl
an

t 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

, 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d/

or
 

pr
os

th
od

on
tic

s 
 

[m
ol

ar
, c

an
in

e,
 

in
ci

so
r,  

w
isd

om
, e

tc
.] 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
, h

al
f o

f 
w

hi
ch

 m
us

t h
av

e 
liv

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 +
 2

-3
 

ho
ur

s 
or

al
 su

rg
er

y 
C

E 
   2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: 

en
do

do
nt

ic
s 

     2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 C

E 
re

: f
ill

in
g 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 a

nd
 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d/
or

 
co

m
po

sit
e 

re
sto

ra
tio

ns
 

 2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 in
-

pe
rs

on
, h

an
ds

-o
n 

C
E 

re
: i

m
pl

an
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
, a

nd
 



 9 
     

 
Im

pr
op

er
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
of

 
gu

m
s/f

la
w

ed
 

os
se

ou
s 

su
rg

er
y/

ot
he

r 
fla

w
ed

 
pe

rio
do

nt
ic

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

/ 
ot

he
r 

pe
rio

do
nt

ic
 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

 
 

Im
pr

op
er

 p
la

ce
m

en
t 

or
 

ad
ju

stm
en

t 
of

  
br

ac
es

/im
pr

op
er

 
re

po
sit

io
ni

ng
 

of
 

te
et

h/
ja

w
s/o

th
er

 
or

th
od

on
tic

 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
 (N

ot
e,

 th
at

 
fa

ilu
re

 
to

 
re

vi
ew

 
di

ag
no

sti
c 

di
gi

ta
l 

or
 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l 

ra
di

og
ra

ph
s 

fo
r 

or
th

od
on

tia
 

be
fo

re
 

di
ag

no
sin

g 
or

 
co

rre
ct

in
g 

m
al

-
po

sit
io

ne
d 

te
et

h 
or

 
fa

sh
io

ni
ng

/o
rd

er
in

g 
de

nt
al

 a
pp

lia
nc

es
 i

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

of
 

N
R

S 
63

1.
34

75
(1

9)
; t

he
 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d/
or

 
pr

os
th

od
on

tic
s 

 
 4-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 

C
E 

re
: 

pe
rio

do
nt

ic
s  

     4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
or

th
od

on
tic

  
                

   10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: p

er
io

do
nt

ic
s 

      10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: o

rth
od

on
tic

  
                 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d/
or

 
pr

os
th

od
on

tic
s 

 
 2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: 

pe
rio

do
nt

ic
s 

     2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 C

E 
re

: o
rth

od
on

tic
  

                 



 10
 

 

re
vi

ew
er

 c
an

 s
ite

 b
ot

h 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

N
RS

 
in

fra
ct

io
ns

 
in

 
th

e 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

re
po

rt,
 

bu
t 

ne
ed

 
sh

ou
ld

 
on

ly
 

se
t 

fo
rth

 
on

e 
se

t 
of

 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts 
as

 
th

ey
 

ar
e 

es
se

nt
ia

lly
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

in
fra

ct
io

n.
 

 
 

Fa
ili

ng
 to

 u
se

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t o

r 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 th
at

 
in

cr
ea

se
 p

at
ie

nt
 s

af
et

y 
(s

uc
h 

as
 a

 ru
bb

er
 d

am
, 

le
ad

 v
es

ts,
 e

tc
.) 

 * 
 N

ot
e 

th
at

 t
he

 r
an

ge
s 

ab
ov

e 
ar

e 
fo

r 
ne

gl
ig

en
t 

cl
in

ic
al

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

; 
if 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
er

 
fin

ds
 

th
e 

po
or

 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

w
as

 
in

te
nt

io
na

l 
an

d/
or

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

 m
er

ito
rio

us
 

ci
vi

l 
m

al
pr

ac
tic

e 
ca

se
 

or
 

cr
im

in
al

 c
ha

rg
es

, t
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
sig

ni
fic

an
t 

ag
gr

av
at

or
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 
ch

an
ge

 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

pu
ni

sh
m

en
t 

to
 

th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

co
lu

m
n.

 

           4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 C
E 

re
: r

isk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

pa
tie

nt
 s

af
et

y  
   

           10
-4

0 
ho

ur
s 

liv
e 

ha
nd

s-
on

 
C

E 
re

: 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
pa

tie
nt

 s
af

et
y  

      

           2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
liv

e 
ha

nd
s-

on
 C

E 
re

: r
isk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
pa

tie
nt

 s
af

et
y 

 
   



 11
 

  * 
 N

ot
e 

th
at

 t
he

 r
an

ge
s 

ab
ov

e 
ar

e 
fo

r 
sta

nd
ar

d 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s; 
if 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

iss
ue

s 
re

su
lts

 
in

 
de

at
h 

or
 

se
rio

us
 b

od
ily

 h
ar

m
, t

hi
s w

ou
ld

 
be

 
a 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
ag

gr
av

at
or

 
lik

el
y 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

pu
ni

sh
m

en
t 

to
 

th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

co
lu

m
n.

 
Fu

rth
er

, 
if 

de
at

h 
or

 
se

rio
us

 b
od

ily
 h

ar
m

 re
su

lts
, t

he
 

re
vi

ew
er

 
ca

n 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
to

 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 li
ce

ns
e.

   
 * 

 N
ot

e 
th

at
 if

 a
 re

vi
ew

er
 fi

nd
s 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 i
ss

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 e
gr

eg
io

us
 o

r 
so

 fa
r o

ut
sid

e 
of

 th
e 

sta
nd

ar
d 

of
 

ca
re

 
th

at
 

a 
ty

pi
ca

l 
de

nt
al

 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
of

fe
nd

ed
 b

y 
su

ch
 c

on
du

ct
, t

he
 

re
vi

ew
er

 
ca

n 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

as
 

an
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fro

m
 3

 
m

on
th

s 
up

 to
 2

-3
 y

ea
rs

.  
 * 

 N
ot

e 
th

at
 i

f 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

er
 

fin
ds

 
oc

cl
us

io
n 

w
as

 
no

t 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
or

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 



 12
 

 iss
ue

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
m

al
oc

cl
us

io
n,

 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

er
 c

an
 a

dd
 2

-4
 h

ou
rs

 
of

 C
E 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

to
 o

cc
lu

sio
ns

.  
 * 

 N
ot

e 
th

at
  

re
vi

ew
er

 c
an

 
ch

oo
se

 t
o 

ad
d 

a 
liv

e 
dr

ill
in

g 
in

str
uc

tio
n 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 t

o 
an

y 
liv

e,
 h

an
ds

-o
n 

C
E 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

if 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 w
ar

ra
nt

ed
. 

 * 
 N

ot
e 

th
at

 i
f 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
er

 
fin

ds
 

a 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
iss

ue
 

oc
cu

rre
d 

on
 a

 g
er

ia
tri

c 
pa

tie
nt

, 
an

d 
ge

ria
tri

c 
pa

tie
nt

s 
ar

e 
in

 
ne

ed
 

of
 

sp
ec

ia
liz

ed
 

or
 

ad
va

nc
ed

 
ca

re
 

fo
r 

th
at

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

iss
ue

, 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

er
 

ca
n 

ad
d 

2 -
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
CE

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
to

 d
en

ta
l t

re
at

m
en

t a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
ge

ria
tri

c 
pa

tie
nt

s. 
 

 * 
 N

ot
e 

th
at

 i
f 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
er

 
fin

ds
 

a 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
iss

ue
 

oc
cu

rre
d 

on
 a

 p
ed

ia
tri

c 
pa

tie
nt

, 
an

d 
pe

di
at

ric
 

pa
tie

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
 

ne
ed

 
of

 
sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 
or

 
ad

va
nc

ed
 

ca
re

 
fo

r 
th

at
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
iss

ue
, 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
er

 
ca

n 
ad

d 
2-

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

CE
 



 13
 

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

to
 d

en
ta

l t
re

at
m

en
t a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

pe
di

at
ric

 
pa

tie
nt

s. 
 

 * 
 N

ot
e 

th
at

 i
f 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
er

 
fin

ds
 

a 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
iss

ue
 

oc
cu

rre
d 

on
 a

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ho

 i
s 

ph
ys

ic
al

ly
 

or
 

m
en

ta
lly

 
di

sa
bl

ed
, 

an
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

ly
 

or
 

m
en

ta
lly

 d
isa

bl
ed

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
ar

e 
in

 
ne

ed
 

of
 

sp
ec

ia
liz

ed
 

or
 

ad
va

nc
ed

 
ca

re
 

fo
r 

th
at

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

iss
ue

, 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

er
 

ca
n 

ad
d 

2-
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
CE

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
to

 d
en

ta
l t

re
at

m
en

t a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
ph

ys
ic

al
ly

 
or

 m
en

ta
lly

 d
isa

bl
ed

 p
at

ie
nt

s. 
 

 * 
 

W
he

re
 

a  
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
co

m
m

its
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 a
ct

 o
f 

su
bs

ta
nd

ar
d 

ca
re

 
as

 o
ut

lin
ed

 
ab

ov
e,

 t
hi

s 
is 

bo
th

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
of

 N
R

S 
63

1.
34

75
)(4

) 
an

d 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l a
gg

ra
va

to
r. 

Th
e 

re
vi

ew
er

 m
ay

 c
ho

os
e 

to
 s

ite
 it

 
as

 a
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

vi
ol

at
io

n,
 b

ut
 i

f 
fo

un
d,

 
in

ste
ad

 
of

 
se

pa
ra

te
 

di
sc

ip
lin

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts,
 

it 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

om
pt

 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 



 14
 

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

in
 

th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

co
lu

m
n.

 
H

av
in

g 
an

 
al

co
ho

l 
or

 
ot

he
r 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
us

e 
di

so
rd

er
 to

 s
uc

h 
an

 
ex

te
nt

 
as

 
to

 
re

nd
er

 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 u
ns

af
e 

or
 u

nr
el

ia
bl

e 
as

 a 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r  
(N

RS
 

63
1.

34
75

)(7
)) 

C
ea

se
 a

nd
 d

es
ist

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
pe

nd
in

g 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 a
 

sh
or

t -t
er

m
 (

30
-6

0 
da

ys
) s

ub
sta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
tre

at
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

 
+ 

D
ru

g 
te

sts
 e

ve
ry

 6
 

m
on

th
s 

fo
r 

2 
ye

ar
s 

- 
if 

pa
ss

es
, 

lic
en

se
 

re
m

ai
ns

 
in

 
go

od
 

sta
nd

in
g;

 
if 

fa
ils

, 
re

lin
qu

ish
 l

ic
en

se
 t

o 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

r 
6 

m
os

. 
To

 
1 

yr
. 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

C
ea

se
 a

nd
 d

es
ist

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
pe

nd
in

g 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 (
60

-1
80

 
da

ys
) s

ub
sta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
tre

at
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
 

+ 
R

an
do

m
 d

ru
g 

te
sts

 fo
r 

2 
ye

ar
s (

up
 to

 5
 te

sts
 p

er
 

ye
ar

) -
 if

 p
as

se
s, 

lic
en

se
 

re
m

ai
ns

 
in

 
go

od
 

sta
nd

in
g;

 
if 

fa
ils

, 
re

lin
qu

ish
 

lic
en

se
 

to
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

fo
r 1

 to
 5

 y
ea

rs
 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

O
ne

 d
ru

g 
te

st 
- i

f 
pa

ss
es

, l
ic

en
se

 
re

m
ai

ns
 in

 g
oo

d 
sta

nd
in

g;
 if

 fa
ils

, 
re

lin
qu

ish
 li

ce
ns

e 
to

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

r 3
0 

da
ys

 
to

 si
x 

m
on

th
s 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

H
av

in
g 

an
 

im
pa

ire
d 

m
en

ta
l 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
th

at
 

re
su

lts
 

in
 

th
e 

in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 sa

fe
ly

 a
nd

 sk
ill

fu
lly

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
(N

R
S 

63
1.

09
5)

 

C
ea

se
 

an
d 

de
sis

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
pe

nd
in

g 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
pa

ss
ag

e 
of

 
a 

m
en

ta
l 

co
m

pe
te

nc
y 

ex
am

 
 

If 
pa

ss
es

, 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 
re

in
sta

te
m

en
t 

af
te

r 3
 

m
on

th
s 

w
ith

 

C
ea

se
 

an
d 

de
sis

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
pe

nd
in

g 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 p
as

sa
ge

 o
f 

a 
m

en
ta

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y 
ex

am
  

If 
pa

ss
es

, 
re

in
sta

te
m

en
t 

af
te

r 6
 m

on
th

s 
w

ith
 p

ro
of

 o
f 

C
ea

se
 a

nd
 d

es
ist

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
pe

nd
in

g 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 p
as

sa
ge

 o
f 

a 
m

en
ta

l c
om

pe
te

nc
y 

ex
am

  
If 

pa
ss

es
, 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 

re
in

sta
te

m
en

t 
 

 
If 

fa
ils

, 
su

sp
en

sio
n 



 15
 

 

pr
oo

f o
f 

on
go

in
g 

tre
at

m
en

t  
 

If 
fa

ils
, 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

in
de

fin
ite

ly
 

un
le

ss
 o

r 
un

til
 a

 
ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

ve
rif

ie
d 

pr
oo

f o
f 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e 

on
go

in
g 

tre
at

m
en

t 
 

If 
fa

ils
, 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

in
de

fin
ite

ly
 

un
le

ss
 o

r u
nt

il 
a 

ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
ve

rif
ie

d 
pr

oo
f 

of
 c

om
pe

te
nc

e 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
in

de
fin

ite
ly

 
un

le
ss

 o
r u

nt
il 

a 
ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

ve
rif

ie
d 

pr
oo

f 
of

 
co

m
pe

te
nc

e 
 

C
om

m
itt

in
g 

an
 

ac
t 

de
em

ed
 

“g
ro

ss
ly

 im
m

or
al

” 
th

at
 te

nd
s t

o 
br

in
g 

re
pr

oa
ch

 u
po

n 
th

e 
de

nt
al

 
pr

of
es

sio
n 

(N
RS

 
63

1.
34

75
)(7

))  
 

(1
) 

If 
co

nv
ic

tio
n 

of
 s

am
e 

w
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 fe
lo

ny
 

(a
sk

 
G

en
er

al
 

C
ou

ns
el

 
fo

r g
ui

da
nc

e 
if 

un
su

re
) 

     
(2

) 
If 

co
nv

ic
tio

n 
of

 s
am

e 
w

ou
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 

a 

(s
ee

 
be

lo
w

 
fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

) 
    R

el
in

qu
ish

/su
sp

en
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

lic
en

se
 

fo
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 

pr
ob

at
io

n 
or

 
im

pr
iso

nm
en

t 
if 

co
nv

ic
te

d;
 

fo
r 

1-
2 

ye
ar

s 
if 

no
t 

co
nv

ic
te

d.
  

 R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 
fo

r 

(s
ee

 
be

lo
w

 
fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

) 
    R

el
in

qu
ish

/su
sp

en
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

lic
en

se
 f

or
 t

he
 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
ba

tio
n 

or
 

im
pr

iso
nm

en
t 

if 
co

nv
ic

te
d;

 f
or

 4
-5

 y
ea

rs
 

if 
no

t c
on

vi
ct

ed
.  

   R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 f
or

 t
he

 

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

) 
    R

el
in

qu
ish

/su
sp

en
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

lic
en

se
 fo

r 
th

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 
pr

ob
at

io
n 

or
 

im
pr

iso
nm

en
t 

if 
co

nv
ic

te
d;

 f
or

 3
 

m
on

th
s 

to
 1

 y
ea

r i
f 

no
t c

on
vi

ct
ed

.  
 R

el
in

qu
ish

/su
sp

en
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

lic
en

se
 fo

r 



 16
 

 

m
isd

em
ea

no
r 

(a
sk

 
G

en
er

al
 

C
ou

ns
el

 
fo

r 
gu

id
an

ce
 if

 u
ns

ur
e)

 
 

(3
) 

W
he

n 
no

t 
a 

cr
im

in
al

 
ac

t, 
bu

t 
in

ste
ad

 
an

 
in

te
nt

io
na

l 
lie

 
or

 
fa

lsi
fic

at
io

n 
m

ad
e 

to
 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
  

    * 
 

N
ot

e 
th

at
, 

du
e 

to
 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
tiv

e 
na

tu
re

 
of

 w
ha

t 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

gr
os

sly
 

im
m

or
al

, 
fo

r p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 th
is 

m
at

rix
, t

he
 

te
rm

 w
ill

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 o
nl

y 
th

os
e 

ac
ts 

ot
he

rw
ise

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
cr

im
in

al
 

un
de

r 
N

ev
ad

a 
cr

im
in

al
 l

aw
s  

an
d/

or
 

an
 i

nt
en

tio
na

l 
lie

/fa
lsi

fic
at

io
n 

m
ad

e 
by

 
th

e 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
di

re
ct

ly
 t

he
 B

oa
rd

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 st

af
f 

re
la

te
d 

to
 li

ce
ns

ur
e 

an
d/

or
 d

isc
ip

lin
e)

  

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

3 
to

 
9 

m
on

th
s.  

  R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 
fo

r 
th

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
fo

r 
30

-
90

 
da

ys
 

+ 
pa

ss
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 
ex

am
 

or
 

do
 

et
hi

cs
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

du
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

1 
to

 
2 

ye
ar

s.  
  R

el
in

qu
ish

/su
sp

en
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

lic
en

se
 f

or
 t

he
 

du
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 6

 m
os

. t
o 

2 
ye

ar
s 

+ 
pa

ss
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
t 

ex
am

 p
rio

r 
to

 re
in

sta
te

m
en

t 
 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 3

0 
da

ys
.  

  Ta
ke

 ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 
ex

am
 o

r d
o 

et
hi

cs
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

+ 
24

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 

B
ei

ng
 c

on
vi

ct
ed

 o
f a

 fe
lo

ny
 o

r 
m

isd
em

ea
no

r 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
or

al
 

tu
rp

itu
de

 o
r 

w
hi

ch
 r

el
at

es
 t

o 

(s
ee

 
be

lo
w

 
fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
  

(s
ee

 
be

lo
w

 
fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
  

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
  



 17
 

 th
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

of
 d

en
tis

try
 (

N
RS

 
63

1.
34

75
)(8

))  
 

(1
) 

If 
fe

lo
ny

  
   

 
 

(2
) 

If 
m

isd
em

ea
no

r 
 

   * 
 N

ot
e t

ha
t, 

to
 a

vo
id

 am
bi

gu
ity

 
ab

ou
t w

ha
t c

on
sti

tu
te

s 
a 

cr
im

e 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
or

al
 t

ur
pi

tu
de

, 
fo

r 
pu

rp
os

es
 

of
 t

hi
s 

m
at

rix
, 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 w

ill
 u

se
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f 
“c

rim
e 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
m

or
al

 
tu

rp
itu

de
” 

co
ns

ist
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 

de
fin

iti
on

 
of

 
sa

m
e 

fo
un

d 
at

 
N

A
C

 3
88

C
.1

00
.  

(o
ffe

ns
es

 o
f 

a 
se

xu
al

 n
at

ur
e;

 
of

fe
ns

es
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

in
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
rv

itu
de

 o
r t

ra
ffi

ck
in

g;
 v

io
le

nt
 

of
fe

ns
es

; 
un

la
w

fu
l 

po
ss

es
sio

n 
of

 f
ire

ar
m

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
da

ng
er

ou
s 

w
ea

po
n;

 
te

rro
ris

m
; 

ab
us

e,
 

ne
gl

ec
t, 

or
 a

ba
nd

on
m

en
t 

of
 a

 

   R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 
fo

r 
th

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 
pr

ob
at

io
n 

or
 

im
pr

iso
nm

en
t 

 
 R

el
in

qu
ish

/su
sp

en
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

lic
en

se
 fo

r 3
 

to
 9

 m
on

th
s. 

   R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 f
or

 t
he

 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

ba
tio

n 
or

 
im

pr
iso

nm
en

t 
 

  R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 f
or

 1
 to

 
2 

ye
ar

s. 

   R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 fo
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 

pr
ob

at
io

n 
or

 
im

pr
iso

nm
en

t 
 

 R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 fo
r 

30
 d

ay
s. 



 18
 

 ch
ild

, 
ol

de
r 

pe
rs

on
, 

or
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

pe
rs

on
; 

ar
so

n;
 

bu
rg

la
ry

 o
r 

re
ce

ip
t 

of
 s

to
le

n 
pr

op
er

ty
; 

ki
dn

ap
pi

ng
 o

r 
fa

lse
 

im
pr

iso
nm

en
t, 

ai
di

ng
 

an
d 

ab
et

tin
g 

fe
lo

ny
, 

id
en

tit
y 

th
ef

t; 
of

fe
ns

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 u
nd

er
 c

ol
or

 
of

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 b

rib
er

y,
 e

xt
or

tio
n,

 
or

 c
oe

rc
io

n;
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

or
 

di
str

ib
ut

in
g 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
e;

 
or

 
cr

ue
lty

 
to

 
an

im
al

s .)
   

 
 * 

N
ot

e 
– 

if 
de

nt
ist

 ta
ke

s 
m

on
ey

 
bu

t 
do

es
 

no
t 

re
nd

er
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
th

is 
w

ou
ld

 
vi

ol
at

e 
N

R
S 

59
8.

09
15

(9
) 

as
 

a 
de

ce
pt

iv
e 

tra
de

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 in
vo

ke
 th

is 
pe

na
lty

.  
 Pe

rfo
rm

in
g 

or
 

su
pe

rv
isi

ng
 

a 
pe

lv
ic

 e
xa

m
 b

ef
or

e,
 d

ur
in

g,
 o

r 
af

te
r 

de
nt

al
 

tre
at

m
en

t 
at

 
a 

de
nt

al
 

fa
ci

lit
y 

(N
RS

 
63

1.
34

75
(1

6)
) 

 (P
re

su
m

in
g 

no
 m

ed
ic

al
 b

as
is

 
fo

r t
hi

s, 
w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 
ne

ve
r 

be
, 

bu
t 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
by

 
an

 
em

er
ge

nc
y,

 

R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 fo
r 1

 
to

 2
 y

ea
rs

. 

R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

.  
 

R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

 fo
r 

30
 d

ay
s t

o 
6 

m
on

th
s 

 
 



 19
 

 m
ed

ic
al

 
or

de
r, 

et
c.

 
Fu

rth
er

, 
th

es
e 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
ne

ed
 o

nl
y 

be
 i

m
po

se
d 

if 
th

e 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
is 

no
t 

al
so

 b
ei

ng
 

ch
ar

ge
d 

or
 c

on
vi

ct
ed

 o
f s

ex
ua

l 
as

sa
ul

t o
r c

iv
il 

to
rt.

 
A

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 a
dm

in
ist

er
in

g 
an

 
im

m
un

iz
at

io
n 

if 
no

t 
sp

ec
ia

lly
 

en
do

rs
ed

 
to

 
do

 
so

 
(N

RS
 

63
1.

34
75

(1
7)

)  

Su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 
lic

en
se

 fo
r 6

 m
on

th
s 

or
 u

nt
il 

im
m

un
iz

at
io

n 
en

do
rs

em
en

t 
ob

ta
in

ed
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 
is 

le
as

t 

Su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 
lic

en
se

 
fo

r 1
-2

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 
in

el
ig

ib
le

 
fo

r 
an

 
im

m
un

iz
at

io
n 

en
do

rs
em

en
t  

M
us

t s
ee

k 
im

m
un

iz
at

io
n 

en
do

rs
em

en
t w

ith
in

 
90

 d
ay

s  

 
   

[re
st 

of
 p

ag
e 

in
te

nt
io

na
lly

 b
la

nk
] 

           
 



 20
 

 

B
. 

Pa
tie

nt
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 o

r I
ss

ue
s 

 
 

M
IS

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 

PR
E

SU
M

PT
IV

E
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
A

G
G

R
IV

AT
O

R
S 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
M

IT
IG

AT
O

R
S 

Fa
ilu

re
 

to
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
e 

a 
pa

tie
nt

 in
 d

ec
isi

on
s 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 

th
ei

r 
tre

at
m

en
t 

(N
RS

 
63

1.
34

75
(1

3)
) 

3 
ho

ur
s o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

&
 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

tre
at

m
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

C
E 

4-
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

&
 3

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
tre

at
m

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 C
E  

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 C

E  

W
ill

fu
lly

 
en

ga
gi

ng
 i

n 
ac

tio
ns

 
th

at
 p

ro
hi

bi
t o

r s
ty

m
ie

 a
 p

at
ie

nt
 

fro
m

 s
ub

m
itt

in
g 

a 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 (N

R
S 

63
1.

34
75

(1
4)

) 

6 
ho

ur
s o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

in
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/c

iv
il 

to
rt 

lia
bi

lit
y 

8-
10

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
6-

10
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

C
E 

in
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/c

iv
il 

to
rt 

lia
bi

lit
y 

2-
4 

ho
ur

s o
f e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

in
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/c

iv
il 

to
rt

 
lia

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

re
co

rd
s 

of
 a

 p
at

ie
nt

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

co
py

in
g 

to
 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 o

r 
th

ei
r 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
 

(N
RS

 
63

1.
34

85
(1

)(d
) ; 

 N
RS

 
62

9.
06

1)
 

3 
ho

ur
s o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
3 

ho
ur

s o
f H

IP
A

A
 

C
E  

4-
8 

ho
ur

s o
f e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 H

IP
A

A
 C

E 
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 H
IP

A
A

 C
E 

Fa
ili

ng
 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r’s
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

(o
ut

lin
ed

 i
n 

N
RS

 
63

1.
34

58
3(

3)
) 

to
 

te
le

he
al

th
 

pa
tie

nt
s 

(N
R

S 
63

1.
34

75
(2

0)
) 

C
er

tif
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
N

R
S 

te
le

he
al

th
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

&
 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 

C
er

tif
y 

re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 N
RS

 
te

le
he

al
th

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 &
 

4-
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

C
er

tif
y 

re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 N
RS

 
te

le
he

al
th

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 

Fa
ili

ng
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
pa

tie
nt

 w
ith

 
an

 it
em

iz
ed

 b
ill

 (
N

R
S 

62
9.

07
1)

 
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
re

co
rd

 
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

&
 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

re
co

rd
 

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

Si
gn

ed
 a

tte
sta

tio
n 

of
 

re
vi

ew
 

of
 

N
RS

 
62

9.
07

1 
 



 21
 

 

C
. 

Pr
ac

tic
e-

 R
el

at
ed

 E
rro

rs
 o

r A
ct

io
ns

 
 

M
IS

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 

PR
E

SU
M

PT
IV

E
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
A

G
G

R
IV

AT
O

R
S 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
M

IT
IG

AT
O

R
S 

Em
pl

oy
in

g 
so

m
eo

ne
 

to
 w

or
k 

by
 

or
 

ne
ar

 
ra

di
og

ra
ph

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

m
ee

tin
g 

N
A

C
 

63
1.

26
0 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
(N

A
C

 6
31

.2
30

(1
)(e

))  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
co

m
e 

in
to

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 N

A
C

 6
31

.2
60

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts 
+ 

1-
2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

E 
+ 

2-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 c
om

e 
in

to
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 N
A

C
 

63
1.

26
0 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

+ 
4-

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
E 

+ 
4-

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
co

m
e 

in
to

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
N

A
C

 
63

1.
26

0 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts 
+ 

1-
2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

Fa
ilu

re
 

of
 

a 
de

nt
al

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ow

ne
r 

to
 a

llo
w

 o
r 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 

em
pl

oy
ed

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

pa
tie

nt
 

re
co

rd
s 

w
he

re
 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 
pr

ov
id

er
 

ha
s 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

ac
tio

n 
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(o
)) 

6 
ho

ur
s o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

in
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/c

iv
il 

to
rt 

lia
bi

lit
y  

8-
10

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
6 -

10
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

C
E 

in
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/c

iv
il 

to
rt 

lia
bi

lit
y  

2-
4 

ho
ur

s o
f e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

2 -
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

in
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/c

iv
il 

to
rt

 
lia

bi
lit

y  

Fa
ilu

re
 

of
 

a 
de

nt
al

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ow

ne
r 

to
 v

er
ify

 t
he

 v
al

id
 a

nd
 

cu
rre

nt
 

lic
en

se
 

sta
tu

s 
of

 
a 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r 

of
fe

re
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

(e
xc

ep
t 

w
he

re
 th

e 
ow

ne
r 

is 
lie

d 
to

 
by

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

an
t) 

(N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(p

)) 

If 
un

lic
en

se
d 

pe
rs

on
 

is 
sti

ll  
em

pl
oy

ed
, 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
te

rm
in

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

+ 
1-

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t C

E 

If 
un

lic
en

se
d 

pe
rs

on
 i

s 
sti

ll  
em

pl
oy

ed
, 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
te

rm
in

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

+ 
4-

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t C

E  

If 
un

lic
en

se
d 

pe
rs

on
 is

 
sti

ll  
em

pl
oy

ed
, 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
te

rm
in

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t  

A
 

de
nt

al
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

ow
ne

r 
em

pl
oy

in
g 

an
y 

un
lic

en
se

d 
or

 
If 

un
lic

en
se

d 
pe

rs
on

 
is 

sti
ll 

em
pl

oy
ed

, 
If 

un
lic

en
se

d 
pe

rs
on

 i
s 

sti
ll 

em
pl

oy
ed

, 
If 

un
lic

en
se

d 
pe

rs
on

 is
 

sti
ll 

em
pl

oy
ed

, 



 22
 

 lic
en

se
-s

us
pe

nd
ed

 
stu

de
nt

 
or

 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

; 
ai

di
ng

 
an

d 
ab

et
tin

g 
sa

id
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t; 

or
 a

id
in

g 
an

d 
ab

et
tin

g 
a 

no
n-

lic
en

se
e 

to
 

pe
rfo

rm
 d

en
ta

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
ou

t 
a 

lic
en

se
 

 (
N

R
S 

63
1.

34
6(

1)
; 

63
1.

34
6(

3)
; N

R
S 

63
1.

34
65

(2
)) 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
te

rm
in

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

+ 
1-

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
E 

+ 
2-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
te

rm
in

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

+ 
4-

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
E 

+ 
4-

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
te

rm
in

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

+ 
1-

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 

W
he

re
 th

e 
ow

ne
r 

of
 a

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
re

qu
ire

s 
a 

pa
tie

nt
 t

o 
se

le
ct

 a
 

sin
gl

e 
de

nt
ist

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
gr

ou
p 

as
 th

ei
r t

re
at

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

, 
no

t 
al

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

 th
ei

r 
el

ec
tio

n 
of

 
tre

at
in

g 
pr

ov
id

er
 

at
 

le
as

t 
on

ce
 

pe
r 

ye
ar

 
(N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
2)

) 

Su
bm

it 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
of

 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

N
A

C
 6

31
.2

30
(2

) 
+ 

2-
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

pa
tie

nt
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n  

Su
bm

it 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
of

 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
2)

 +
 2

-4
 h

ou
rs

 
of

 
C

E 
re

: 
pa

tie
nt

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
+ 

1-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E  

Su
bm

it 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
of

 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

N
A

C
 6

31
.2

30
(2

)  

A
 d

en
ta

l 
hy

gi
en

ist
 

or
 d

en
ta

l 
th

er
ap

ist
 

pr
ac

tic
in

g 
in

 
an

 
un

lic
en

se
d 

fa
ci

lit
y 

(N
RS

 
63

1.
34

6 
(4

))  

R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
lic

en
se

 
un

til
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

at
 

lic
en

se
d 

fa
ci

lit
y 

se
cu

re
d 

R
el

in
qu

ish
/su

sp
en

d 
lic

en
se

 u
nt

il 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
at

 li
ce

ns
ed

 
fa

ci
lit

y 
se

cu
re

d 
+ 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E  

C
ea

se
 

w
or

k 
at

 
un

lic
en

se
d 

fa
ci

lit
y 

 
 [re

st 
of

 p
ag

e 
in

te
nt

io
na

lly
 b

la
nk

] 
  D

. 
C

le
ric

al
/R

ec
or

d 
K

ee
pi

ng
/D

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

Er
ro

rs
 o

r A
ct

io
ns

 
 



 23
 

 

M
IS

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 

PR
E

SU
M

PT
IV

E
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
A

G
G

R
IV

AT
O

R
S 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
M

IT
IG

AT
O

R
S 

In
te

nt
io

na
l F

al
sif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

R
ec

or
ds

 (N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(a

))  

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E  
+ 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

14
-2

0 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

14
-2

0 
ho

ur
s o

f 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

 +
 

et
hi

cs
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 

2-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
2 -

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E  
+ 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 re
co

rd
 th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 th

e 
tre

at
in

g 
pr

ov
id

er
 w

ho
 

re
nd

er
ed

 e
ac

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 
pa

tie
nt

 r
ec

or
ds

 (N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(q

)) 

(if
 n

eg
lig

en
t) 

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 

(if
 w

ill
fu

l a
nd

 
kn

ow
in

gl
y)

 8
-1

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

8-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

de
nt

al
 ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 

ex
am

  

(if
 n

eg
lig

en
t) 

 3
 h

ou
rs

 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

Im
pr

op
er

 r
ec

or
d 

ke
ep

in
g 

(o
nl

y 
is 

al
so

 p
os

se
ss

in
g 

an
es

th
es

ia
 li

ce
ns

e)
  

(N
A

C
 6

31
.2

22
9)

 
  (1

) s
lo

pp
y/

ill
eg

ib
le

 
      

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

) 
    4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

pu
rc

ha
se

 u
se

 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

re
co

rd
ke

ep
in

g 
so

ftw
ar

e 

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

) 
    8-

12
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

pu
rc

ha
se

 u
se

 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

re
co

rd
ke

ep
in

g 
so

ftw
ar

e 

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
in

fra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

) 
    2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
pu

rc
ha

se
 u

se
 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
re

co
rd

ke
ep

in
g 

so
ftw

ar
e 



 24
 

  (2
) m

iss
in

g 
tre

at
m

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n  

    (3
) m

iss
in

g 
di

ag
no

se
s 

or
 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
in

fo
 

    (4
) n

ot
 re

ta
in

ed
 f

or
 a

 
su

ffi
ci

en
t p

er
io

d 
of

 ti
m

e 
(5

 
ye

ar
s  

fo
r a

du
lts

; 5
 y

ea
rs

 
po

st-
18

 fo
r m

in
or

s)
 

 4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 C
E 

 4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 d

ia
gn

os
in

g 
C

E 
 4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

4 -
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
re

co
rd

s 
re

te
nt

io
n 

C
E 

 8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 C

E 
 8-

12
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

4-
12

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 d

ia
gn

os
in

g 
C

E 
 8-

12
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

4 -
12

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

re
co

rd
s 

re
te

nt
io

n 
C

E 

 2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 C
E 

 2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 d

ia
gn

os
in

g 
C

E 
 2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n/
re

co
rd

-
ke

ep
in

g 
C

E 
+ 

2 -
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
re

co
rd

s 
re

te
nt

io
n 

C
E 

U
ns

ig
ne

d 
or

 m
iss

in
g 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
on

se
nt

 fo
rm

s 
(N

R
S 

41
A

.1
10

) 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
on

se
nt

 C
E 

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

ed
 c

on
se

nt
 C

E 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
on

se
nt

 C
E 

  [re
st 

of
 p

ag
e 

in
te

nt
io

na
lly

 b
la

nk
] 

E.
 

Pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Er
ro

rs
 o

r A
ct

io
ns

 
 



 25
 

 

M
IS

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 

PR
E

SU
M

PT
IV

E
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
A

G
G

R
IV

AT
O

R
S 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
M

IT
IG

AT
O

R
S 

Pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 in
 e

xc
es

siv
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

(N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(b

))  
    

- 
If 

th
is 

ca
us

es
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 s
ub

sta
nt

ia
l 

ph
ys

ic
al

 o
r 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gi
ca

l h
ar

m
 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

no
n -

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  
   + 

 4
-6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 d

ru
g -

re
la

te
d 

ci
vi

l t
or

t m
al

pr
ac

tic
e 

  

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

no
n -

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  a
nd

 n
on

-
na

rc
ot

ic
 p

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t  

 + 
 4

-6
 h

ou
rs

 o
f C

E 
re

: 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d/
or

 d
ru

g -
re

la
te

d 
ci

vi
l t

or
t m

al
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

no
n -

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  a
nd

 
no

n-
na

rc
ot

ic
 p

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t  

 + 
 4

-6
 h

ou
rs

 o
f C

E 
re

: 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d/
or

 d
ru

g -
re

la
te

d 
ci

vi
l t

or
t m

al
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

Pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 w
he

n 
no

t p
ro

ve
d 

as
 c

lin
ic

al
ly

 n
ee

de
d 

(N
R

S 
63

1.
34

75
)(5

))  
  

- 
If 

th
is 

ca
us

es
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 s
ub

sta
nt

ia
l 

ph
ys

ic
al

 o
r 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gi
ca

l 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

no
n -

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  
 + 

 4
-6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 d

ru
g-

re
la

te
d 

ci
vi

l t
or

t m
al

pr
ac

tic
e 

 
  

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

no
n -

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  
 + 

 4
-6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 d

ru
g-

re
la

te
d 

ci
vi

l t
or

t m
al

pr
ac

tic
e 

 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

no
n -

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  
 + 

 4
-6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 d

ru
g-

re
la

te
d 

ci
vi

l t
or

t m
al

pr
ac

tic
e 

 

O
bt

ai
ni

ng
 c

on
tro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 b

y 
  

  
  



 26
 

 m
isr

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
or

 fr
au

d 
(N

A
C

 6
31

.2
30

(1
)(c

))  
 

- 
If 

th
e 

de
nt

al
 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l 

th
em

se
lv

es
 d

oe
s t

hi
s 

   
- 

If 
th

e 
de

nt
al

 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l’s
 a

ct
io

ns
 

al
lo

w
 a

 p
at

ie
nt

 to
 d

o 
so

 (e
.g

. g
iv

in
g 

bl
an

k 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n;
 c

al
lin

g 
in

 p
re

sc
rip

tio
n 

fo
r 

kn
ow

n 
m

ak
er

/d
ea

le
r; 

no
n-

de
nt

ist
 li

ce
ns

ee
 

pr
et

en
di

ng
 to

 b
e 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 d

en
tis

t; 
et

c.
)  

   R
el

in
qu

ish
 li

ce
ns

e 
to

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

r 6
 m

os
. T

o 
1 

yr
. a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
e 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
ab

us
e 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
 6-

12
 h

ou
rs

 o
f e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

6-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
C

E 
re

: a
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
on

 c
on

tro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 +
 d

en
ta

l 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

 

   R
el

in
qu

ish
 li

ce
ns

e 
to

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

r 1
-2

 y
ea

rs
 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

  14
-2

0 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

14
-2

0 
ho

ur
s o

f 
C

E 
re

: a
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
on

 c
on

tro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 +
 d

en
ta

l 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

 +
 

et
hi

cs
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n  

   R
el

in
qu

ish
 li

ce
ns

e 
to

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

r 3
0-

60
 

da
ys

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

ab
us

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n  

 2-
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
2-

4 
ho

ur
s o

f C
E 

re
: a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

on
 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 
+ 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
  

Fa
ili

ng
 to

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f o

ne
 se

lf -
qu

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

an
nu

al
ly

 (N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(r)

) 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

PM
P 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

 

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

PM
P 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

an
d 

PM
P 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

Pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

an
y 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
a 

da
ng

er
ou

s 
dr

ug
 a

nd
 n

ot
 F

D
A

 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 



 27
 

 ap
pr

ov
ed

 (N
R

S 
63

1.
34

75
)(6

)) 
an

d 
no

n-
na

rc
ot

ic
 p

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t  

an
d 

no
n-

na
rc

ot
ic

 p
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
no

n-
na

rc
ot

ic
 p

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

a 
m

ed
ic

at
io

n 
to

 a
 

pa
tie

nt
 w

ith
ou

t h
av

in
g 

ph
ys

ic
al

ly
 e

xa
m

in
ed

 th
em

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
6 

m
on

th
s 

an
d/

or
 if

 th
e 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r 

kn
ow

s o
r r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

e 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
fil

le
d 

by
 a

n 
ill

eg
al

 in
te

rn
et

 o
r 

fo
re

ig
n 

ph
ar

m
ac

y 
 

(4
53

.3
64

3(
1)

(a
)  

(P
le

as
e 

no
te

, t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 tr
ig

ge
r 

a 
cr

im
in

al
 c

on
vi

ct
io

n 
fo

r a
 C

at
eg

or
y 

B
 

fe
lo

ny
 w

ith
 a

 
se

nt
en

ce
 o

f 3
-1

5 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
us

, i
t c

ou
ld

 
al

so
 tr

ig
ge

r t
he

 
“g

ro
ss

ly
 im

m
or

al
 a

ct
” 

di
sc

ip
lin

e 
ab

ov
e.

  
 W

he
re

 n
o 

cr
im

in
al

 
ch

ar
ge

s 
re

su
lt,

  4
-6

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 C

E 
re

: 
pr

es
cr

ib
in

g 
dr

ug
s 

(P
le

as
e 

no
te

, t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 tr
ig

ge
r a

 c
rim

in
al

 
co

nv
ic

tio
n 

fo
r a

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

B
 fe

lo
ny

 w
ith

 
a 

se
nt

en
ce

 o
f 3

-1
5 

ye
ar

s. 
Th

us
, i

t c
ou

ld
 

al
so

 tr
ig

ge
r t

he
 “

gr
os

sly
 

im
m

or
al

 a
ct

” 
di

sc
ip

lin
e 

ab
ov

e.
 

 W
he

re
 n

o 
cr

im
in

al
 

ch
ar

ge
s 

re
su

lt,
 8

-1
2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

dr
ug

s 

(P
le

as
e 

no
te

, t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 tr
ig

ge
r 

a 
cr

im
in

al
 c

on
vi

ct
io

n 
fo

r a
 C

at
eg

or
y 

B
 

fe
lo

ny
 w

ith
 a

 
se

nt
en

ce
 o

f 3
-1

5 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
us

, i
t c

ou
ld

 
al

so
 tr

ig
ge

r t
he

 
“g

ro
ss

ly
 im

m
or

al
 a

ct
” 

di
sc

ip
lin

e 
ab

ov
e.

 
 W

he
re

 n
o 

cr
im

in
al

 
ch

ar
ge

s 
re

su
lt,

 2
-3

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 C

E 
re

: 
pr

es
cr

ib
in

g 
dr

ug
s 

Pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

a 
pa

tie
nt

 th
e 

w
ro

ng
 a

nt
ib

io
tic

 f
or

 th
ei

r 
co

nd
iti

on
 (e

.g
., 

pr
es

cr
ib

in
g 

an
 e

ye
 d

ro
p 

on
ly

 a
nt

ib
io

tic
 

fo
r a

n 
or

al
 c

on
di

tio
n,

 
di

sti
ng

ui
sh

ed
 f

ro
m

 
pr

es
cr

ib
in

g 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 

vi
ab

le
 b

ut
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
le

ss
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
an

tib
io

tic
 th

an
 a

n 
an

tib
io

tic
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
as

 
re

ve
al

ed
 b

y 
la

te
r 

te
sti

ng
) 

or
 

fa
ili

ng
 to

 p
re

sc
rib

e 
a 

pa
tie

nt
 

3-
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

an
tib

io
tic

 d
ru

gs
 +

 3
-4

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 C

E 
re

: 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l  

5-
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

an
tib

io
tic

 d
ru

gs
 +

 5
-8

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 C

E 
re

: 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l  

1-
2 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

an
tib

io
tic

 d
ru

gs
 +

 1
-2

 
ho

ur
s 

of
 C

E 
re

: 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l  



 28
 

 an
y 

an
tib

io
tic

 p
os

t-p
ro

ce
du

re
 

w
he

n 
do

in
g 

so
 is

 g
en

er
al

ly
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s t

he
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 

ca
re

 
 

   [re
st 

of
 p

ag
e 

in
te

nt
io

na
lly

 b
la

nk
] 

                    F.
 

Li
ce

ns
ur

e 
or

 B
oa

rd
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

Er
ro

rs
 o

r A
ct

io
ns

 



 29
 

  
M

IS
C

O
N

D
U

C
T

 
PR

E
SU

M
PT

IV
E

 
PE

N
A

LT
Y

 
PE

N
A

LT
Y

 W
IT

H
 

A
G

G
R

IV
AT

O
R

S 
PE

N
A

LT
Y

 W
IT

H
 

M
IT

IG
AT

O
R

S 
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

to
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e  

an
d 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

  
1 

– 
de

at
h 

of
 a

 p
at

ie
nt

 d
ur

in
g 

de
nt

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
t; 

 
2 

– 
in

ci
de

nt
 d

ur
in

g 
tre

at
m

en
t 

th
at

 re
su

lts
 in

 a
 p

at
ie

nt
’s 

pe
rm

an
en

t i
nj

ur
y 

of
 

ho
sp

ita
liz

at
io

n;
 

3 
– 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 d
en

ta
l l

ic
en

se
 

in
 a

no
th

er
 s

ta
te

;  
4 

– 
a 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r’s

 c
rim

in
al

 
co

nv
ic

tio
n;

 
5 

– 
a 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r’s

 k
no

w
n 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 la
w

 in
 N

R
S 

ch
ap

te
r 6

31
; a

nd
  

6 
– 

a 
fin

di
ng

 o
f c

iv
il 

lia
bi

lit
y 

in
 

a 
ca

se
 a

ga
in

st 
th

e 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r 
in

 
th

is 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 st

at
e 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

th
ei

r p
ra

ct
ic

e 
of

 d
en

tis
try

  (
N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(d
); 

N
A

C
 6

31
.1

55
) 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 c

iv
il 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
+ 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
  

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 c

iv
il 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
+ 

de
nt

al
 ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 

ex
am

 +
 e

th
ic

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n  

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d/

or
 c

iv
il 

lit
ig

at
io

n  

Fa
ili

ng
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 B

oa
rd

 
in

ve
sti

ga
to

r 
w

ith
 re

co
rd

s 
w

he
n 

re
qu

es
te

d 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 b

ef
or

e 
et

he
 B

oa
rd

 (N
A

C
 6

31
.2

30
(1

)(s
)) 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 e

th
ic

s 
C

E 
+ 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 H

IP
A

A
 

C
E  

4-
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 H
IP

A
A

 
C

E  

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 H

IP
A

A
 

C
E  



 30
 

 Pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r 

fa
ils

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
or

 fi
le

 
pr

oo
f o

f c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

E 
cr

ed
it 

ho
ur

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
th

re
e 

or
 

m
or

e 
tim

es
 (

N
A

C
 6

31
.1

77
(3

)) 
  

 * 
 If

 a
 li

ce
ns

e 
ap

pl
ic

an
t h

as
 

fa
lsi

fie
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 C

E 
cr

ed
it 

ho
ur

s 
an

d 
sa

m
e 

is 
di

sc
ov

er
ed

 in
 a

 C
E 

au
di

t, 
se

e 
“g

ro
ss

ly
 im

m
or

al
 a

ct
” 

su
bs

ec
tio

n 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

A
 

(P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l C
om

pe
te

nc
e 

Er
ro

rs
/M

al
pr

ac
tic

e/
M

isc
on

du
ct

). 
Th

e 
pe

na
lti

es
 h

er
e 

ca
n 

be
 ru

n 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

 o
r c

on
se

cu
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

pe
na

lti
es

 th
er

e.
  

Pa
y 

tri
pl

e 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 
fe

e 
fo

r c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 li

ce
ns

e 
(c

ur
re

nt
ly

 $
25

 x
 3

 =
 

$7
5)

 

Pa
y 

qu
ad

ru
pl

e 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 fe
e 

fo
r 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n 

of
 a

 
lic

en
se

 (c
ur

re
nt

ly
 $

25
 

x 
4 

= 
$1

00
) 

Pa
y 

do
ub

le
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 fe
e 

fo
r 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n 

of
 a

 
lic

en
se

 (c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

$2
5 

x 
2 

= 
$5

0)
 

Pr
ac

tic
in

g 
w

ith
 n

o 
or

 a
 

su
sp

en
de

d 
or

 re
vo

ke
d 

lic
en

se
 

(N
R

S 
63

1.
34

6(
5)

)  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 c

ea
se

 a
nd

 
de

sis
t f

ro
m

 p
ra

ct
ic

e;
 

in
el

ig
ib

le
 to

 a
pp

ly
 o

r 
re

-a
pp

ly
 fo

r o
ne

 y
ea

r 
  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 c

ea
se

 a
nd

 
de

sis
t f

ro
m

 p
ra

ct
ic

e;
 

in
el

ig
ib

le
 to

 a
pp

ly
 o

r 
re

-a
pp

ly
 fo

r 2
-5

 y
ea

r 
(o

r i
nd

ef
in

ite
ly

 if
 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r 

ca
us

es
 

se
rio

us
 b

od
ily

 h
ar

m
) +

 
re

fe
rra

l t
o 

A
G

’S
 

of
fic

e/
D

A’
s 

O
ffi

ce
/p

ol
ic

e 
fo

r C
la

ss
 

D
 fe

lo
ny

) 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 c

ea
se

 
an

d 
de

sis
t f

ro
m

 
pr

ac
tic

e;
 in

el
ig

ib
le

 
to

 a
pp

ly
 o

r r
e -

ap
pl

y 
fo

r 1
 m

on
th

 to
 6

 
m

on
th

s 

 
 

[re
st 

of
 p

ag
e 

in
te

nt
io

na
lly

 b
la

nk
] 



 31
 

 

G
. 

A
ne

sth
es

ia
 E

rro
rs

 o
r A

ct
io

ns
 

 
M

IS
C

O
N

D
U

C
T

 
PR

E
SU

M
PT

IV
E

 
PE

N
A

LT
Y

 
PE

N
A

LT
Y

 W
IT

H
 

A
G

G
R

IV
AT

O
R

S 
PE

N
A

LT
Y

 W
IT

H
 

M
IT

IG
AT

O
R

S 
W

he
n 

ad
m

in
ist

er
in

g 
or

 
su

pe
rv

isi
ng

 th
e 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
ne

sth
es

ia
 

or
 se

da
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

a 
de

nt
al

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e,

 fa
ili

ng
 to

 re
m

ai
n 

pr
es

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ro

om
 w

ith
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 a
t a

ll 
tim

es
 (

N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(f)

)  

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r 1

 y
ea

r o
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

48
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 le

as
t 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

6 
m

os
. T

o 
2 

yr
s.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 

th
e 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

be
fo

re
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t 

 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
re

in
sta

te
 a

fte
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

A
dm

in
ist

er
in

g 
m

od
er

at
e 

se
da

tio
n 

to
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 
pa

tie
nt

 a
t a

 ti
m

e  
w

ith
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ire
ct

 
su

pe
rv

isi
on

 o
f e

ac
h 

pa
tie

nt
 

(N
A

C
 6

31
.2

30
(1

)(g
)) 

6-
10

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E 

8-
16

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E 

2-
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E 

A
dm

in
ist

er
in

g 
de

ep
 

se
da

tio
n 

or
 g

en
er

al
 

an
es

th
es

ia
 to

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 

pa
tie

nt
 a

t a
 ti

m
e 

(N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(h

))  

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r 1

 y
ea

r o
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

48
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 le

as
t 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

6 
m

os
. T

o 
2 

yr
s.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 

th
e 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

be
fo

re
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
re

in
sta

te
 a

fte
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

an
es

th
es

ia
 o

r s
ed

at
io

n 
6-

10
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
8-

16
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
2-

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 



 32
 

 pa
tie

nt
 w

ith
 p

ul
se

 o
xi

m
et

er
 

or
 si

m
ila

r 
du

rin
g 

a 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

(N
A

C
 

63
1.

23
0(

1)
(i)

) 
A

llo
w

in
g 

a 
pe

rs
on

 n
ot

 
ce

rti
fie

d 
in

 C
PR

 to
 c

ar
e 

fo
r 

an
 a

ne
sth

et
iz

ed
 o

r s
ed

at
ed

 
pa

tie
nt

 (
N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(j)
) 

6-
10

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E  

8-
16

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E  

2-
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
an

es
th

es
ia

 C
E  

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

in
fo

rm
ed

 
pa

tie
nt

 c
on

se
nt

 p
rio

r 
to

 
ad

m
in

ist
er

in
g 

an
es

th
es

ia
 o

r 
se

da
tio

n 
(N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(k
)) 

 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
on

se
nt

 C
E 

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

ed
 c

on
se

nt
 C

E 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
on

se
nt

 C
E 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 k
ee

p 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

pa
tie

nt
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
re

co
rd

s 
(N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(l)
) 

4-
6 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

6 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

re
co

rd
s 

re
te

nt
io

n 
C

E 

8-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
4-

12
 

ho
ur

s 
of

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
re

co
rd

s 
re

te
nt

io
n 

C
E 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n/

re
co

rd
-

ke
ep

in
g 

C
E 

+ 
2-

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

re
co

rd
s 

re
te

nt
io

n 
C

E 
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 a
n 

an
es

th
et

iz
ed

 o
r 

se
da

te
d 

pa
tie

nt
’s 

de
at

h 
or

 
ho

sp
ita

liz
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f i
nc

id
en

t (
N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(m
))  

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r 1

 y
ea

r o
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

48
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 le

as
t 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

6 
m

os
. T

o 
2 

yr
s.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 

th
e 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

be
fo

re
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t 

 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
re

in
sta

te
 a

fte
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 



 33
 

 A
llo

w
in

g 
a 

pe
rs

on
 

un
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 d
o 

so
 to

 
ad

m
in

ist
er

 a
ne

sth
es

ia
 o

r 
se

da
tio

n 
(N

A
C

 
63

1.
23

0(
1)

(n
)) 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r 1

 y
ea

r o
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

48
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 le

as
t 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

6 
m

os
. T

o 
2 

yr
s.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 

th
e 

de
nt

al
 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

be
fo

re
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t 

 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
re

in
sta

te
 a

fte
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

A
ne

sth
es

ia
 p

ro
vi

sio
n 

ca
us

ed
 o

ve
rs

ed
at

io
n 

or
 

un
de

rs
ed

at
io

n 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 
se

rio
us

 p
hy

sic
al

 o
r 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gi
ca

l h
ar

m
 (a

 fo
rm

 
of

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
m

isc
on

du
ct

 
un

de
r N

R
S 

63
1.

34
75

)(1
) 

an
d 

(2
))  

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r 1

 to
 2

 y
rs

., 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

 
be

fo
re

 re
in

sta
te

m
en

t 

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
  

R
el

in
qu

ish
 a

ne
sth

es
ia

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

an
es

th
es

ia
 C

E 
an

d 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 
ju

ris
pr

ud
en

ce
 e

xa
m

, 
re

in
sta

te
 a

fte
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

 
 [re

st 
of

 p
ag

e 
in

te
nt

io
na

lly
 b

la
nk

] 
      H

. 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
on

tro
l-R

el
at

ed
 A

ct
io

ns
 o

r I
ss

ue
s 

 
 



 34
 

 

M
IS

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 

PR
E

SU
M

PT
IV

E
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
A

G
G

R
IV

AT
O

R
S 

PE
N

A
LT

Y
 W

IT
H

 
M

IT
IG

AT
O

R
S 

G
iv

in
g 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 
de

m
on

str
at

io
n 

of
 

m
et

ho
ds

 o
f p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 

an
y 

pl
ac

e 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

of
fic

e 
w

he
re

 th
e 

Li
ce

ns
ee

 re
gu

la
rly

 
pr

ac
tic

e s
 (

N
R

S 
63

1.
34

6(
2)

) 

4-
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 
sig

ne
d 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

re
vi

ew
in

g/
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

N
R

S 
63

1.
34

6(
2)

 

6-
12

 h
ou

rs
 C

E 
re

: 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l a

nd
 

sig
ne

d 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
of

 
re

vi
ew

in
g/

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
N

R
S 

63
1.

34
6(

2)
 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 
sig

ne
d 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

re
vi

ew
in

g/
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

N
R

S 
63

1.
34

6(
2)

 

Li
ce

ns
ee

 d
id

 n
ot

 u
se

 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

hi
le

 
pr

ac
tic

in
g 

  

4-
8 

ho
ur

s 
of

 e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
4-

8 
ho

ur
s 

of
 C

E 
re

: 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l 

6-
12

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
th

ic
s 

C
E 

+ 
6-

12
 h

ou
rs

 C
E 

re
: 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 

2-
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 C
E 

re
: 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 

O
w

ne
r o

f a
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 im
pl

em
en

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l m

ea
su

re
s  

at
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d/
or

 fa
ils

 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
at

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y 

bu
t d

oe
s n

ot
 

cu
re

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
 

(N
A

C
 6

31
.1

78
(1

); 
N

A
C

 6
31

.1
78

5(
9)

; 
N

A
C

 6
31

.1
79

(4
)) 

 
(1

) 
R

isi
ng

 to
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r i
nf

ra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
        Su

m
m

ar
y 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

; t
o 

ob
ta

in
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

40
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l C
E,

 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r i
nf

ra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
        Su

m
m

ar
y 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

; t
o 

ob
ta

in
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

80
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l C
E,

 
ta

ke
 th

e 
de

nt
al

 

(s
ee

 b
el

ow
 fo

r i
nf

ra
ct

io
n 

ty
pe

)  
        Su

m
m

ar
y 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
of

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
lic

en
se

; t
o 

ob
ta

in
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t.,

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

8 -
16

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l C

E 
an

d 
al

lo
w

 fo
r a

nd
 p

as
s 

a 
re

-



 35
 

 

ne
ga

tiv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

, 
sa

fe
ty

, a
nd

 
w

el
fa

re
 o

f 
pa

tie
nt

 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

be
fo

re
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t, 

an
d 

al
lo

w
 fo

r a
nd

 p
as

s 
a 

re
-o

pe
ni

ng
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

pr
io

r t
o 

re
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

 

ju
ris

pr
ud

en
ce

 e
xa

m
 

be
fo

re
 re

in
sta

te
m

en
t, 

an
d 

al
lo

w
 fo

r a
nd

 p
as

s 
a 

re
-o

pe
ni

ng
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

pr
io

r t
o 

re
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

 

op
en

in
g 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
pr

io
r 

to
 re

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

  

 



 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 















 















 











 











 











 













 











 











 







 


